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The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Group is principally engaged in supply and procurement
business operations. During the year, following the disposal of
Gadgets Yard Limited (“Gadgets Yard"), a previously 51%
owned subsidiary of the Company, the Group ceased the
operations of design, manufacture and sale of a wide range of
toys. There were no other significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Vision Century Group Limited (“Vision Century”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the immediate
holding company of the Company. In the opinion of the
directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately held by a discretionary
trust.
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2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 21 2EHREE
At 31 March 2006, the Group had net current liabilities of E/:\: 9?\ SFZA=1+—H AEEZRDERE
HK$17,364,000 and deficiency in assets of HK$2,124,000. BREEEBBE A A17,364,0008 T &
The Group incurred a loss attributable to equity holders of the 2,124 OOO/%TI: AEEFBARERFEE AR

Company of HK$15,994,000 and reported a net cash outflow
from operating activities of HK$20,787,000 for the year ended
31 March 2006.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the Group and to
improve the Group's financial position, immediate liquidity and
cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going
concern, the directors of the Company have adopted the
following measures:

(a) Huang Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of Vision Century, which was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, has undertaken to the Company,
during the period up to 31 October 2007, to provide
continuing financial support to the Group so as to enable
the Group to continue its day-to-day operations as a viable
going concern notwithstanding any present or future
financial difficulties experienced by the Group.

(b) The directors of the Company are in ongoing negotiations

with the Group's bankers and other creditors to reschedule

the repayment of certain borrowings due from the Group
and to seek their ongoing support to the Group. In

particular, the Group has successfully obtained from a

Group's banker in Mainland China a new borrowing of

RMB12,750,000 (equivalent to HK$12,260,000),

repayable on 26 April 2007 (the “New Loan"), after the

year end date. The New Loan was utilised to partially
repay a bank loan of HK$15,884,000 outstanding as at

31 March 2006.
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12,260,000/87T) EZ%%%&EEA_TTJCE
MAZ+BEE(FHER]) - HEXK
EEEIMR_EENF=A=1T—8% K
ZR1TE 315,884,000 7T °
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(d)

(e)

Vision Century has granted a credit facility of
HK$50,000,000 to the Company since 2 July 2003. On
15 February 2006, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Vision Century, for issuance
of a convertible note in the principal amount of
HK$37,000,000 as part of the consideration for the release
and discharge of the Group from all of its obligations and
liabilities in respect of the loan from Vision Century. On
30 March 2006, the date the convertible note being
issued, HK$37,856,000 (being the principal amount of a
l[oan of HK$31,378,000 and accrued interest of
HK$6,478,000) was owed by the Company to Vision
Century. The Company settled the remaining accrued
interest of HK$856,000 by cash from internal resources.
The convertible note is repayable on 29 March 2009
while the credit facility of HK$50,000,000 granted by
Vision Century is still valid and should be expired on 31
October 2007.

The directors of the Company are considering various
alternatives to strengthen the capital base of the Company
through various fund raising exercises, including but not
limited to, a private placement, an open offer or a rights
issue of new shares of the Company.

The directors of the Company continue to take action to
tighten cost controls over various general and
administrative expenses, and are actively seeking new
investment and business opportunities with an aim to
attain profitable and positive cash flow operations.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, in light of the

measures taken to date, together with the expected results of

other measures in progress, the Group will have sufficient

working capital for its current requirements and it is reasonable

to expect the Group to return to a commercially viable going

concern. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are satisfied

that

it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a

going concern basis, notwithstanding the Group's financial and
liquidity position at 31 March 2006.
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2.2

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected
in the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.2

MAEBRERFELEREET - BIBIELE
BRBUASFISEEZBEEINEEATKREE
HRlgEELE ZEMBEINAEFLEE - AR
RBEERBENNEFDBRARBEENRR
B ZEFBERBHMIIBZZELERREN
wmERAP o

mAEEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
periodic remeasurement of certain buildings as further explained
below. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2006. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continued to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders
in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

REBBRRDBEETESIAMAGEMIER
FmE Rl ((FeMBHEREER]) (MBREE
SRR (THFEGFER]) k2E) BEEERR
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2.3 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

23 HAREEITEMBHREEN 22 E
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The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and
are adopted for the first time for the current year's financial K8

statements:

HKAS 1

BB G EAE 1R
HKAS 2

BB G R 25
HKAS 7

BB G EFTH
HKAS 8

BB G A F 85
HKAS 10

BB G ERFE 105
HKAS 12

BB G ERE 125
HKAS 14

BB G ERE 1457
HKAS 16

BB G EAFE 165
HKAS 17
BBGHERE17H
HKAS 18

BB G ERF 185
HKAS 19

BB G ERE 195
HKAS 21
BBGHERE 215
HKAS 23

BB G ERIF 235
HKAS 24

BB G ERIFE 245
HKAS 27

BB G ERE27H
HKAS 32

BB G EREI25%
HKAS 33

BB G ERIE I35
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Presentation of Financial Statements
@Kz 275

Inventories

FE

Cash Flow Statements

BenEXR

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GETER St ERRE

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
mEBRER

Income Taxes

PriE T

Segment Reporting

DEWmE

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

HE

Revenue

WA

Employee Benefits

EE =N

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs

f& TR AN

Related Party Disclosures

BEANLTHRE

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
ra MBI BHREK

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
TRIA: RERZF

Earnings per Share

FRAEN

F
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2.3 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
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HKAS 36
BRI ERFE 365
HKAS 37
BRI EREITR
HKAS 38
BRI ERFE 385
HKAS 39
BRI ERFEIHR
HKAS 39 Amendment

BB ERIF 395 (BR])

HKAS 40

BB ERFE 405
HKFRS 2

BB B RE LR E 25K
HKFRS 3

BB B wEERE IR
HKFRS 5

BB B RE LR ESR
HK(SIC)-Int 21
BEBGCIO)-ZEE 219
HK-Int 4

BEREBEAR

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21,
23,27, 33, 36, 37, 38, 40, HKFRS 3, HK(SIC)-Int 21 and HK-
Int 4 has had no material impact on the accounting policies of

Impairment of Assets

EERIE

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

B XIRBEMRAREE

Intangible assets

BIEE

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

TRMIA  ERKFTE

Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

TREELEREBEZBERNTER

Investment Property

REME

Share-based Payment

VAR 0 32 A+ 2 538

Business Combinations

XA b

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

FIEHEZHERDEENCRIERERHK

Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciable Assets

Fred — WEEGANTHEEE

Leases — Determination of the Length of Lease Term in respect of
Hong Kong Land Leases

HE - ExaATHHEECHERRE

HMESST£B$2-7-8-10" 12 14~
16-18-19-21-23-27-33-36"37 38"
40%% - BBV B REEREIR - FEGCIO—2

e arad

the Group and the Company and the methods of computation EBEQINREAREFIFEAEEREARAZE

in the Group's and the Company's financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests on
the face of the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and

other disclosures.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties and
affected the Group's related party disclosures.

ABRREAEERARR ZH B HRRZFAETE
WEEREAZE -

AR EAFIRELBRREENGREER
H

BR HAKER FARZEPRLEMKE
ZEELEZ2ITABRTE -

BRQENF2RBER THEALZESE - I
HAKEB BHRBEALIREBRTE -
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The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised as
follows:

(@) HKAS 17 - Leases

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own
use were stated at valuation less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group's leasehold
interest in land and buildings is separated into leasehold
land and leasehold buildings. The Group's leasehold land
is classified as an operating lease, because the title of the
land is not expected to pass to the Group by the end of
the lease term, and is classified as prepaid land lease
payments, while leasehold buildings are classified as part
of property, plant and equipment. Prepaid land lease
payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the lease term. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

The comparative amounts for the year ended 31 March
2005 have been restated to reflect the reclassification of
the leasehold land.

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments

Upon the adoption of HKAS 32, convertible note and
bonds are split into liability and equity components. The
effects of the above changes are summarised in note 2.5
to the financial statements. In accordance with HKAS 32,
comparative amounts have been restated.
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2.3 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) 23 i RRBBAIERUBEREEN 2T E (&)
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(c) HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment (c)

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-
based payment transactions in which employees (including
directors) were granted share options over shares in the
Company were required until such options were exercised
by employees, at which time the share capital and share
premium account were credited with the proceeds
received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees
(including directors) render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions"), the cost
of the equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which the instruments are granted.

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is the
recognition of the cost of these transactions and a
corresponding entry to equity for employee share options.
The revised accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions is described in more detail in note 2.6
“Summary of significant accounting policies” below.

The effects of adopting HKFRS 2 are summarised in note
2.5 to the financial statements.

1

REEFE BEURTEE (BREZ)A
Al i D 2 BRI Z AR D X 2 R T
REEE - BEERBITERBEBIER T AMK
BR 2 Fr 15 5RO % B AN B B 40 )4 8 AR AR

RmEEMBERERRE2RR - ERE (£
RES) RHRHBERRETAZRER ([
BEERS])  HEBETREBEERSHZ
RATIZ2ERTARHBARZAFEER

B °

BEMBREEFEREAEE T ERE
RERRER D ZRARRBELEERBK
RIELBEGA - BBAUARD X
NeRPZEETEFHRRER T XME2.6
[EREHRMEIE—HFL -

o

RMBEVWBREERNE 2R FERARAK
g mR M E2.5

ANNUAL REPORT 2006

FH 49



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl i

31 March 2006

] T M

ZEEAF=A=1-H

5t

2.3 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
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(d)
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HKFRS 5 — Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

The Group has applied HKFRS 5 prospectively in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 5,
which has resulted in a change in accounting policy on
the recognition of a discontinued operation. Under
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP") 33
“Discontinuing Operations”, the Group would have

recognised a discontinued operation at the earlier of:

« the date the Group enters into a binding sale
agreement; and

the date the board of directors have approved and
announced a formal disposal plan.

HKFRS 5 requires a component of the Group to be
classified as discontinued when the criteria to be
reclassified as held for sale have been met or when that
component of the Group has been recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. The principal impact of this change in accounting
policy is that the results for the year ended 31 March
2005 attributable to the discontinued operations have
been reclassified to the “Loss for the year from
discontinued operations” on the face of the consolidated

income statement of the Group.
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24 EEMEHMRERZEBMBHREEN 2
&

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
HKFRSs are effective for accounting periods beginning on or

after 1 April 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment
BRI ENE 15 (BF])
HKAS 21 Amendment
BRI ENFE215% (BE])
HKAS 39 Amendment
BEETEREI9% (BE])
HKAS 39 Amendment
BEETTERFEI9% (BE])
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Amendments
BT EANEINN
REBMBREEDNE A5 (BET)
HKFRS 7
BRMB RS ERETR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
ER(ERVBREZRRLZE®)RBEIR

HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2007. The revised standard will

AEEHRRAMBERREM T2 R/MEHK
R FHFIRBETEENBREEN - BRRA
Frigoh  ZERAEMBHRELIN _ZF A FN
A—BRzRMAta ST HREN :

Capital Disclosures

BEARE

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

RBINEH 2 HEFR

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
BRASEARARIZ2REREL FEHA

The Fair Value Option

Bz A TEE

Financial Guarantee Contracts

EREFRSD

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

CRIA: KE

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
ARE—BLYEREBEEHE

Scope of HKFRS 2

ERVBMEERE 2R 2EE

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
BEHRAMBRARITETLR

ARG EAUE IR (B AR -_ZETLFHNA—
Az &Mtac st PIMEA - KETERBE
ERMAKRERE BREAEEETBRZTEM

affect the disclosures about qualitative information about the
Group's objective, policies and processes for managing capital;
quantitative data about what the Company regards as capital;
and compliance with any capital requirements and the
consequences of any non-compliance.

BRBE  EEARARARAESZEEENE
BAMEHETEMNESRRETET 1)
BRZWE -
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
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HKFRS 7 incorporates and further extends the disclosure
requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments.
This HKFRS shall be applied for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding
financial guarantee contracts, financial guarantee contracts are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption
of the pronouncements listed above will not have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements in the period of
initial application.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 25 B BEERM Y EME

Group A EE
(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheets (a) HREEEEBRZEE
At 1 April 2005 R-_ZEZTRFWMA—H
Effect of adopting
RANTRBEZRZE
HKAS 17 HKAS 32
BEGHER FEEEA
F179% F325%
Prepaid Convertible
land lease note
payments and bonds Total
Effect of new policies B T AR EE
MBR2 T8 HEIA k&% a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET
Assets BE
Decrease in property, plant and ME - BERRE
equipment 2 (48,400) — (48,400)
Increase in prepaid land B T ERIE
lease payments Z 3N 31,272 = 31,272
(17,128)
Liabilities/equity Bl HH
Decrease in convertible bonds A#BRES 2D - (12) (12)
Decrease in asset revaluation BEERREBIRD
reserve (18,534) - (18,534)
Increase in share premium account A% 1% 4 {8 B 2 3 A1 - 351 351
Increase in equity component of AR ESZER
convertible bonds B 2N - 517 517
Decrease/(increase) in ZREEBBZRL
accumulated losses (3% 4n) 1,406 (856) 550
(17,128)
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2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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54

ANNUAL

Group (Continued)

At 31 March 2006

Effect of new policies

FHRZHE

Assets

Decrease in property, plant
and equipment

Increase in prepaid land lease
payments

Liabilities/equity

Decrease in convertible note

Decrease in asset revaluation
reserve

Increase in share option reserve

Increase in equity component of
convertible note

Decrease/(increase) in
accumulated losses

REPORT 2006

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheets (Continued)

EE

NE - BERERE
B D

AR LSRR
il

i/ #E

JRRERZHD

EEERRERIRD

BRI G 2
TRRPEEE
#5240
ZREAZAD

(%1m)

KEBE (&)
(a) BHREEEEBRZTE ()
R=-ZBEEXE=A=+—H

Effect of adopting

RALTEEZYE
HKAS 17 HKAS 32 HKFRS 2

EhA-E BREH BRUBERS
ERE17H  EREI2R ERIF25

Equity-
Prepaid  Convertible settled
land lease note  share option

payments and bonds arrangements

At TRERREE UEREE

HENE k% ZBREZH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TER
(49,700) - -
30,544 - -

— (10,326) =
(19,653) = =
- - 457

- 10,344 -

497 (18) (457)

Total
a4

HK$'000

(49,700)
30,544

(19,156)

(10,326)

(19,653)
457

10,344
22

(19,156)



NOTES TO

2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

25 B BRENZHEME (&)

Group (Continued)

(b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 April 2004 and

at 1 April 2005

Effect of new policies

HRE B

1 April 2004 —TTNFMA—H
Decrease in asset revaluation reserve & E E i {2 R
Increase in share premium account P& 17 i 18 B 2 32 A
Increase in equity component AH#REREEES

of convertible note and bonds
Decrease/(increase) in accumulated

AR Z 3B

A& (F)

(b) HR-_ZZNFNA-AR=-22HFNH
A-—RBzREGHRsoE

Effect of adopting
RMATRELRE

ZEBRZAD,/ GEM)

losses
1 April 2005 —_TThFMA—H
Decrease in asset revaluation reserve ZBESMREE 2D
Increase in share premium account P& 17 4 18 B 2 32 A

Increase in equity component

AR E S 2 B D

of convertible bonds 2 3Em
Decrease/(increase) in accumulated ~ EREBEZE D,/
losses (& )

HKAS 17 HKAS 32
EAGHEL FEGER
FNT%R £32%
Prepaid Convertible
land lease note
payments and bonds

AL QESE 3 Total

MERA S4EEs) A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

(18,037) - (18,037)

= 351 351

= 2,640 2,640

1,637 (2,242) (605)

(15,651)

(18,534) - (18,534)

= 351 351

= 517 517

1,406 (856) 550

(17,116)
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2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25 B BRERZHEHNE (&)

56

ANNUAL

Group (Continued)

years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005

Effect of new policies

HBR2EE

Year ended 31 March 2006

Decrease in revenue
Decrease in cost of sales
Decrease in other income
and gains
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Decrease in selling and
distribution costs
Decrease/(increase) in
administrative expenses
Decrease/(increase) in other
operating expenses
Decrease/(increase)
in finance costs
Increase in loss for the year
from discontinued operations

Total increase in loss

Increase in basic loss per share

REPORT 2006

(c) Effect on the consolidated income statements for the

FEE (&)
(c) HBEZ-ZEAFR-_ZFZTILF=A=F
—BLFEZHRERBERZY
Effect of adopting
R@NTREZEE
HKAS 17 HKAS 32 HKFRS 2 HKFRS 5
EHEE EEE BREUBE BEUER
EREATH ERFERHE SEUF2R EEXAZESR
Equity-
Prepaid  Convertible settled
land lease note share option Discontinued
payments  and bonds arrangements  operations Total
Bt TEREE UEREER BRI
HERE RESF cBRERS REXH Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
HECZRAHF
ZA=t-HLFE
Wazm D - - - (10,795) (10,795)
HERAZR D - - - 13,459 13,459
LY ONE ¢
ZRD - - - (441) (441)
HE—RNBERRZER = = - 34 34
HERDHEHAX
ZRD - - - 334 334
TBRAZ 2D/
(4 m0) 438 - (466) 1,404 1,376
AR ERx 2md/
() (1,347) - - 3,831 2,484
MEKKZEL/
(4 hn) - (30) - 29 (1
BRIEEEEB
AEEBEZEM - - - (7,855) (7,855)
BRzZEMESR (909) (30) (466) - (1,405)
BREAEB LM (HKL centsil) - (HK0.6 cent#1L) - (HK1.7 centsi# L)

F



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

25 B BRENZHEME (&)

Group (Continued)

(c) Effect on the consolidated income statements for the
years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005 (Continued)

Effect of new policies
MR HE

rEE (8
(c) HEBZ-ZEE2AFR-_FETILF=A=T

Year ended 31 March 2005 HEZZTTRF
ZA=+—HLEE
Decrease in revenue WA ZRD
Decrease in cost of sales HERA 2R
Decrease in other income H A A Rz
and gains 2R
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M B 2 A
2 W

Decrease in selling and
distribution costs

HERDHERAIXZRD

Decrease in administrative THRAX 2D
expenses

Increase in other operating Hoh 45 & 5 2
expenses il

Increase in finance costs BEKAZEM

Increase in loss for the year ERIEREERZ
from discontinued operations AEREERZEM

Total increase in loss BER2EmaE

Increase in basic loss per share

BREKREREZE

—BLEFEZHRANARZTE ()
Effect of adopting
RMUTREZEE
HKAS 17 HKAS 32 HKFRS 5
BERGTE BEGHE BFEUBR
AE175% RIFE32% SEAESH
Prepaid  Convertible

land lease note Discontinued
payments and bonds operations

T’Eﬁii‘@ QESE 3 BRI Total

ME R KfEH REXEH A&t

HK$' OOO HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FERT FET FET

= = (36,205) (36,205)

= = 39,379 39,379

- - (944) (944)

- - (8,030) (8,030)

= = 1,106 1,106

385 = 7,199 7,584

(616) - (788) (1,404)

- (737) - (737)

- - (1,717) (1,717)

(231) (737) = (968)

(HK0.3 cent® L) (HKO.9 centfl)

~ (HK1.2 centsi# L)

ANNUAL
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2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25 B BRERZHEHNE (&)

Company

(a)

58

ANNUAL

Effect on the balance sheets

At 1 April 2005

Effect of new policy

Liabilities/equity

Decrease in convertible bonds

Increase in share premium account

Increase in equity component of
convertible bonds

Increase in accumulated losses

At 31 March 2006

Effect of new policies

Liabilities/equity

Decrease in convertible bonds

Increase in share option reserve

Increase in equity component of
convertible bonds

Increase in accumulated losses

REPORT 2006

b NVNES|
(a) HEEABRZFE
R-ZZEZERAENHA—H
Effect of adopting
HKAS 32
Convertible
note and bonds
RME AT LR
FEI2RZTE
TRERzRE AHRBREERRES
HK$'000
TET
88 #i
AR &S 2B (12)
& 17 4 1B Bk 2 18 AN 351
MR &S 2 B 10
il 517
REBEZEM (856)
R-ZZEEXE=F=1+—H
Effect of adopting
BRMNTREZEE
HKFRS 2
HKAS 32 Equity-
Convertible settled
note  share option
and bonds  arrangements Total
BB ERN BFBRUERSE
SE 325k Z R 525K
TRRRE UEREHE
FBERZ® kEH ZEBEREZH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THET
BfE E#H
AR ES 2B (10,326) - (10,326)
BRI 2L - 457 457
AR E 7 2 #E b 1
Z & 10,344 - 10,344
REBEZEM (18) (457) (475)
F ]



NOTES
Rl i

31 March 2006

2.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25 B BRENZHEME (&)

TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
$# © B SE

—FEAFZA=+-A

Company (Continued)
(b) Effect on the balances of equity

Effect of new policies

Increase in share premium account
Increase in equity component

of convertible note and bonds
Increase in accumulated losses

(c) Effect on the income statements

At 31 March 2006

Effect of new policies

Increase in administrative expenses
Increase in finance costs

Total increase in loss

ERNT (&)
(b) HREGHRZE

Effect of adopting HKAS 32
Convertible note and bonds

RwEBETTER
ER2WHE
THEREBRES
1 April 1 April
2005 2004
—EZRE —ZTTEWEF
TRz E MA—H mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
P A O 18 B 2 38 AN 351 351
Al RERES 2R
#R oy 2 1B 517 2,640
REBE LM (856) (2,242)
() HEBREZHE
R-ZBERF=ZA=+-H
Effect of adopting
RAUTREZRE
HKFRS 2
HKAS 32 Equity-
Convertible settled
note  share option
and bonds  arrangements Total
BERErER BRUKEE
5325 % B 58 255
THRREE LEREE
HRRzE & kfEx ZBREZRH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT
TR 2 18 hn - (466) (466)
BEKARZIEM (30) - (30)
Py IFCE (30) (466) (496)
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ZEEAF=A=1-H

5t

SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

B RRERCHERE (&)

2.6

Company (Continued)
(c) Effect on the income statements (Continued)

At 31 March 2005

A\N

Effect of new policies MBRZ T8

N

BEKA ZE

Increase in finance costs

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.6

AT (&)
(c) HUBERZEE (£)

R-ZEZEAF=A=1+—H

Effect of adopting
HKAS 32
Convertible

note and bonds
KB EG LR
FIVF e E
BB RERES
HK$'000

TEEHRERE

60

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

26 TEEHHRERE (8)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

EERME (&)

RETEEREEBAEAKEREZBRT
FTERRAREEE - AEEAEER - BIARE
ReKHEEREERERARZERMSN G2
BRI ERFB[EFARBERE - REESE
egHENRBACKRERNG  RIEBEEDNERE
HESE  BAREEBEeREREELRERAS
IR B B

REREADRGENEREEEERNTFRETNA
EHAZREBBRTIBEFAEXAED RS o it
BZEDR - WERHerrRE5RE - RBEERMN
BEEERAMBIREA Gt AN ER - BEE
REBEREBE (TEEER) HETE - HiH
RBEFRELIANEERRBEER - BEAKE
TREPREEE ZKREE HKEMHRE) - ¥
BrZREBEeRARLLBRREZRER K
FEEDREMBEINR  AREBERLT  FEBZR
ERReRIREHEEZBEBEA BRI
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2.6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

26 TEFHHEBE (B)

62

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

ANNUAL

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is
related party of the Group.
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2.6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or
as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to accumulated losses as a movement in reserves.

NE- BERRERTE

ME  BERREB (ERIRRKRIN DRKAL
ERZENEREMBEBEIE - WX - BE

RERBZRABEREBEBRIMNKEEZ
HEBBEFERANMEERER G 2 EEK
KoHENE BERRBRERAZEERELEZ
X mEEREERS - —RRELHEBA KRS
RPHEG - MEERZBEREFERT T HEH
BFHERAEAYE BERRBRBEGSZE
BRIz ATIE N - ™I A KA A ST E
AT B EZ R EECEINNARETEKA -

ETEECREREARNBRREGEEZR
FEEEEARAEYEERSR - WX BE R
REEBEENEREEELREBEEZIRE -
AEEARRTRNEHEBA ZENEENSH)
ATz BB RERTHNG - HRZEHBH
SUBEHNR BB AUGER - HEEREE
B NEGHESRCEEEGREHEBELSE

ARBBRIERFHERSY -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

26 TESTHERE (&)

64

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life, after taking into
account its estimated residual value. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

¥  BERRBRITE (&

NEREME BERREBEE 2Bt ERF
H (Bt R E G REREE) NEREMEEK A
EEFREEFE -FAEMBIEBEEZNT

Buildings 2% to 5%, or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
BT 2%—5% HEHREFH (UREERE)

Leasehold improvements
HEMEREE

Moulds, plant and machinery
EE - RE R#es

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

12.5% — 15%
12.5% —15%

and motor vehicles 20%
R KB RERRE 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 3R

20% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
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2.6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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26 TEEHHRERE (8)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of items of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing.

ME - BERREBERITE (&)
ERIBRDEZET  BRABEMRERSED
R BYEFTE RABSREHAMS R 2
HREEAAR - ERIBRTEREAEREEHRD
BEBEZWE BELREERBERR -

REME

REMEDRFHERDES RARHEKE
B MFELEERHEE @R RETERE
& MIFE—MEGBRETHEZEFTES - %
EMEBUABRANEREMBEBETE -

BEXLEREVEEMBESNBEERHESF
BZWERPHER -

HE

SREAERBEIN  ARBEEZHEBEBRID @R
FRBBEFAREZHAOBKIAREHNRE
2o RNBEEMNIVE HEBERANABENZA
NREHEZRERFEEE  EREESEE(IE
BEHEHD) —FAR  ARBRBELBELS -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

26 TEFHHEBE (B)

66

Leases (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (applicable to the
year ended 31 March 2006)

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets after initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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Investments and other financial assets (applicable to the
year ended 31 March 2006) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended
31 March 2006)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement.
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Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended
31 March 2006) (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment

of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.
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Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 March 2006)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

REREHEE BEARBE-SFEAF=A=
t-BLEFE)

TREE(HER —HeREEZ Mok —
ABOEMEEZ —872) ETHIBERKRER

s WHMZBEEEMSREREZENEEMD

e AEERBUMZAREEMSRERECE
Mo HEARE-BIEMI 2 EREBRE
EFE=TZIBERT » OB BEMNEZ B
ENRZEME &

=

s AEBECERHUBMZEBEEMSRTSAE
ZHEM Y (QEBRZREEZR/RE DR
a R EE HO)LEBRRREZREEL
BAMIRERKLER BEERXBREEL
122 Il

N

AASEEZHRNZBEERSRERE 21
Mo EYEEEIREZREEZBABYER
EER BV BERZBEEZEHE  ZBE
ERERAR  EANAKEARESRZREE
ZRERR - HMIAMBREERRTVAFTEY
Ko RRZBRERECREOHEENASERAEE
ZREBELEMER 2BREEFE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 F3#{ 49



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)]

31 March 2006

2.6

i ¥& ®© B BE

ZEEAF=A=1-H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

26 TEFHHEBE (B)

70

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair
value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Convertible note and bonds

The component of convertible note and bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
balance sheet, net of transaction costs. On issuance of
convertible note and bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note and bond; and this amount is carried as
a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible note and bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable to the year
ended 31 March 2006)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated cost to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

« where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

R (&)

Lmﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m =REER

s MRETEBXIKNIERERBAHXR
HZBEERRERELIMNRZBLEYS
AEMEERTEMNKERBERTE BT
RBEER R

e HARRKMEBARCKREELZERRER
ZEMs  WMREREZEEZBDEEAAE
Hl R EREERAA TGN A AR RKE
@O

EXERABEERMAAMRERZE KK A
ZHBRARERWBHZHBAE R EEHR
MEABAIREA RPN EH AR ERER R
AR EERNBHZIHBRRERMAREEHZ
HREBELR

e WREFTBEIXGAHIZEN S HRFE
XBEHRGZEERRBERELEMNR S
5 I 4 S 2 5 e M) Sl B AR A st M S B IR B K
FEZARAUMRERZRZEEHAEEE
BRON - I

e MRWBRRZREELZAMBERZR
msEr BERBEEEAERZRAAIEN
] F8 5 R 2R ¢ [l K A) B A JE AR A5 0 ) DA K 85
EREZEQRER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 F#H 73



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)]

31 March 2006

2.6

i ¥& ®© B BE

ZEEAF=A=1-H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

26 TEFHHEBE (B)

74

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
("market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date"). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (the "Employment Ordinance”) in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make
such payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made. The provision is
based on the best estimate of the probable future payments
which have been earned by the employees from their service
to the Group to the balance sheet date.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, REAAEEGHBEREZBRD  RERERM
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management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Impairment test of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the
event previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Company has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value, or such an event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows, which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could have a material effect on the
net present value used in the impairment test.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

TEER

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of business
segments are as follows:

Continuing operations:

« the supply and procurement segment supplies office
equipment and office supplies, machinery, machinery parts,
lubricating oil and bunkerage for vessels; and

«  the corporate and other segments consists of corporate
income and expense items and holding of property.

Discontinued operations:

« the toddler cars segment manufactures and trades
children’s ride-on cars featuring working horns and turning
wheels;

«  the cycling segment manufactures and trades children’s
bicycles, tricycles and scooters; and

+ the other toys segment comprises the manufacture and
the trading of pre-school toys, plastic utensils and other
fashionable toys.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, which are North America, Europe, Singapore and
the Asia Pacific Region and other regions. Assets are attributed
to the segments based on the location of the assets.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the
business segments.

DEERUMEBEIEFARE  OVUEBDHEE
AEFEEHHRA  R)AMEDBIEARER
H®AHA o

AEEZEEXRGREEGHERMREZERE

THEREE AKEBEXBIBARKME

TE%%&ZH%&@&%EM%%“@THZ
REUEXRBEN - XBOBEEHRRBADT :

RELEXR

e HERRBIBEBAHEBRLZRE I
AREAmMREFBHERA KT  BHT
~ Hm R R

e GEXENEMOBERE BEL
RAEME -

FWREE R

BRI R T
¢ BAEHFEBANEREEREES A
GRS P VEL DR TS

0 PENEEBRAEREEREES
%E&@WE?&

e H#@WANER BRUENEBEZMNA -
PRRAmANEMERTA -

AEBEREME DB  SREPAEME DU
AFBAE - BMESM - BUM - #ing - EXE
FREMME - BEDREMELEMDR -

EBOBZRAMENRHEREE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEEH (B)
(a) Business segments (a) %28
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and TREVNNAGEEBE-_TETHRFR_TT N
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the FZA=1T—"BHLEFEREBIEZWA
Group's business segments for the years ended 31 March wH (BR)RETEE  BBERFAXZE
2005 and 2006. o
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BEREEE BALEEER
Supply and Corporate and
procurement others Sub-total Toddler cars (ycling Other toys Sub-total Consolidated
FERGER LEREH it 878 1 Ef5a it ke
006 005 006 005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
CREAE CRTIF CRENE CTTLE CIIAEF CSRIF CREINE CTTRE CREAE CTRIF CRI5E CTTRE CRRAF CTRIF CRIRE 3RIE
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$000
T#r  TEr fHx  TEr fRr  TEr TR TEr  fEr  TEr  TEn TEn  TEm TEr TEm T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
()] (&71) (&) (231) (231) (231) (#3)
Segment revenve:  AEHA
Sales 10 exteml IREFZ
customers HER 155,550 144687 - - 1S5 l4468T 4501 23874 2519 5360 RTIS 4971 10795 36205 166345 180892
Otherrevenve and — £fMARYE
gains 9l 34 - - 9l 34 184 663 103 146 154 135 i %44 53 978
155641 144721 - - ISSEAT 4721 4685 26537 262 5506 399 5106 16 3149 166877 181810
Segment results ~ AEEE 15494 888 - - TS 888 (7Y (45) (T4 (1365 (2828 (930)  (7820) (9741 Te68  (863)
hterestncome and~~ HERARFIE
unallocated revenie — MARME
and gains - -1 42 1340 41 - B0 130 8
Unallocated expenses ~ FAER T - - (nsa) (0317 msa) (10317) - - (11521 (10317)
Finance costs HENE - - (4620)  (47%) (46200 (4786) (9 - (4649 (4780)
Proft/(oss) before tax FATET/(BB) 15494 8884 (14801)  (14691) 693 (5807) (185 (717 (116)  (752)
Tar BB G11)  (1609) - - B (1609) - - (31 (1608
Profif(loss) for the year AEERA/(BB) 1232 776 (14801)  (14891)  (2479)  (7419) (1855)  (1L117) (1033 (913)
Assets and liabilities  EEHEE
Segment asse HREE 60400 38641 52484 SBIT3 112884 93754 - 13 - 4 - 35 - T8 1 11541
Unallocated assets ~~ AARAE 513 24000
Tote assels f#EE 118007 139472
Segment abiles SRR B738 0 BI0 RNE BI5GB 5968 - - mm -5 - 88 es%e6 68547

Unallocated liabllis ~ AAE &R

Total libiltes Bak
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES

TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

4. DEER (F)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

(a) ¥2%E (&)

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELERR BALEEEE
Supply and Corporate and
procurement others Sub-total Toddler cars (ycling Other toys Sub-total Consolidated
tERRE LEREM it gz hiE AR it ga
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
ZRERE CRRDF CBEAE TTLE CRRAF CRR0F CRIAE CTTRE CRIRE CSIRF CRERE CTTLE CBERAE CSTIF CRERE C5%IE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000
TEn  TEn TEr T TRn  TExr TEr  TEm  TEn  ThAr TEn  TEr  Tér  TEr  TEn  TER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (&5)) (&51) (E5l) (&) (E51) (&51)
Other segment A HEER
information:
Depreciaton and NEREAEN
recognion of prepaid LA EFE
lend lease payments 126 = 2,660 5843 2,786 5843 1,109 950 620 1,569 928 1,258 2,657 317 5,443 9,620
Impaiment of tems of 115 * BE R
property plantand ~~ RBEEZ
equipment R - = - = - = 1,624 60 892 28 1351 B 3873 111 3873 1
Provison/(wite-back of %28/
poision) aganst (RFEE)
inventores () 48 - - ) - 175 - % - 7 S I
Provison for impaiment ERE A AL
of accounts ik
receivable - - - - - - - 207 - 4 - 40 - 290 - 290
Equiy settled share~ HEREEZ
option expenses ERERx - - 466 - 466 - - - - - - - - - 466 -
Capitel expendire £ 2% - - 182 2% 182 185 33 - 130 - 46 185 499 481 681
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31 March 2006

] T M

ZEEAF=A=1-H

5t

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEEH (B)
(b) Geographical segments (b) #HESDHE
The following tables present revenue and certain asset TRENAEEREZE_TTERNFR_ZTTN
and expenditure information for the Group's geographical FZA=t—"HLEFERBEIBEZHAR
segments for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005. ETEERIEZER -
Group KE
Asia Pacific Region
(including Hong Kong
and Mainland China
but excluding
North America Europe Singapore Singapore) Others Consolidated
EAE(BEBERY
LEH B Filg BAEBREEF MR HHHE ke
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEIRE “ITRE CZBRAE TTRE CBERE CTTRE CEEXE CRTRE C3ERE IR CBRIRE C2%0E
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TiEx TR TEL TR TiEx TR TiEx TR TiEx TEn  TEn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (23))
Segment revenue: ARUA
Sales to extemal MREPL
customers fEE 1,141 2037 628 25172 155550 144687 3406 5100 - 38% 166345 180892
Attibutable to BRIEEESH
discontinued operetions &5 (L4 057) (6248 (2517) - - (3408 (5100 - (38%) (10,795 (36205
Revenue from: WARE :
continuing operations B E X - = - - 155550 144687 - - - - 155550 144687
Other segment HtAEER :
information:
Segment assefs AREE - 8 - 5200 63344 40547 54663 93707 - - 118007 139472
Copitel expenditure AR - - - - 296 - 185 681 - - 481 681
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

)]

31 March 2006

WA~ H AR K=

] T M

5t

—FEAFZA=+-A

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover represents the

net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts during the year.

An analysis of turnover, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue
Sale of goods

Other income

Interest income
Rental income

Others

Gains

Waiver of accounts payables
Gain on disposal of

items of property,

plant and equipment

Exchange gain, net

=
S

i
TR
iy
=

s
=
b=
>~

3

M EBA
HEHRA
it

e

B RS

HEYE  BE
REER

2 3%

B3 3% 24

WA (FEAEEZ X8 BFRACMBREER
B ELENEREE -
EEE - HMWARKREASHTNAT -
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
RECERE BRIEEERK CE
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Z2EXRE —TTRE ZBERE _—TTHF ZBERE _"TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TET TR TET
155,550 144,687 10,795 36,205 166,345 180,892
267 24 - 1 267 25
654 - - - 654 -
487 301 441 562 928 863
1,408 325 441 563 1,849 888
- 81 - 213 - 294
23 - - - 23 -
- 40 - 168 - 208
23 121 - 381 23 502
1,431 446 441 944 1,872 1,390
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Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

6. FINANCE COSTS

STATEMENTS

6. BEMKAK

Interest on:
Bank loans, overdrafts and other loans
wholly repayable within five years
Convertible note and bonds

Attributable to discontinued operations

THBRZFE
AREFAZBERZRIT
BEF - B REMER

AR R K E 5

ERIEREXRBENG

Attributable to continuing operations reported R4R & W KK E 2 FE

in the consolidated income statement

REXEBREG
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Group

E3
2006 2005
—EERE —ETILF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
(Restated)
(E71)
4,619 3,618
30 1,168
4,649 4,786
29 =
4,620 4,786
4,649 4,786




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bl i%5 ¥k © BI 5%
31 March 2006 =—BEAF=ZF=+—-H
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BREARF(FB)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRBEIEFN(BE) &HN% GEA) AT
(crediting): %A
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
BREEXY BRIEKEER Rt
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
“BERE _TTRFE ZBERE _TTRFE ZBERE _ITTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET TR TAET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Z3) (E3) (&%)
Cost of inventories sold B &HFEHKA 136,723 132,223 6,726 23,729 143,449 155,952
Depreciation of items of NE - BER
property, plant and REEE 2
equipment (note 14) rE (fk4) 1,665 2,146 2,620 6,746 4,285 8,892
Depreciation of investment R EBYE 2T &
properties (note 15) (B 15) 430 - - - 430 -
Recognition of prepaid REM L
land lease payments HEFIE
(note 16) (FzE16) 728 728 - - 728 728
Provision for impairment  FEMURFURE
of accounts receivable LB - 290 - - - 290
Minimum lease payments ~ B# L RIEF
in respect of land ZREEE
and buildings 450 633 155 108 605 741
Auditors' remuneration ZE B & 1,180 1,080 - = 1,180 1,080
Employee benefits expense (& E 18 7l X2
(excluding directors' (TaEES
remuneration — note 8): B4 — M8 :
Wages and salaries TERE® 2,951 2,859 1,732 5412 4,683 8,271
Equity-settled share NEHER
option expenses BIRER X 466 - - - 466 -
Pension scheme RINEEE
contributions K 124 251 21 53 145 304
3,541 3,110 1,753 5,465 5,294 8,575
Foreign exchange EHER
differences, net R 2,194 (40) (43) (168) 2,151 (208)
Impairment of items of nE - WER
property, plant and REEAZ
equipment w8 - - 3,873 111 3,873 111
Provision/(write-back of FECBIE/
provision) against (B ERERE)
inventories (485) 485 - 343 (485) 828
Revaluation surplus on HEEBFEM Y
leasehold buildings R4 - - - (1,164) - (1,164)
Gross and net rental income 18 & Wt A 4258
R 654 - - - 654 -

At 31 March 2006 the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in

future years (2005: Nil).

RZZEZRF=ZA=+—0 AEBEYEDRWH
KARMBEERKRERE 2 RREFEARFT(ZTE

heF &) -
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31 March 2006

ZEEAF=A=1-H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

8. EBM

88

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of the Hong Kong N

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees:

Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

Other emoluments of executive directors:

Salaries, other allowances and

benefits in kind

Equity-settled share option expenses

Pension scheme contributions

e -
WITES
BIUFKTES

ROTETZEMME -
Fe o HtRMEEYHN G

DHEmEE 2 BIRERX
RKE B R

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, FA

in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been amortised to the income

statement, was determined as at the date of the grant and

included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

ANNUAL
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REFLE

SHERABRES EMRREE
BRAGIEIIGEBRBECAFEEEHEFHIFN

CRIEARR 2B AER S
FRARNKEEHRGERBRE  BRACE—F
FIEHAN B mRMT28 - ERBRKREHZZ
FEBRBEZATFEBEIRROAREE - Lt A
EXABBEZEEMEA -

Group

A%H
2006 2005
—EERE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
300 240
300 240
1,040 1,279
380 =
52 64
1,472 1,343
1,772 1,583
B TERRK



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM=e (&)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNXINTHEIERTESFZRESNT :

during the year were as follows:

Group
rEE
2006 2005
—EEAE —_ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BEEREE 100 80
Mr. Lau Pok Lam BB L 100 80
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan mEBEE 100 42
Mr. Wu Wing Kit Ak B S & - 38
300 240
There were no other emoluments payable to the REFANN JERNBLIEBITE S 2 0] H o BY
independent non-executive directors during the year 2 (ZZETHF &) -
(2005: Nil)
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31 March 2006
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ZEEAF=A=1-H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEME (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries, other Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
in kind expenses contribution remuneration
e Hit
RUEREY UEBREEZ Ei#hE
ME BRERX ot B AR MeHE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THERT
2006
—EEARE
Executive directors: WITEE -
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles LR LA 520 76 26 622
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 260 76 13 349
Mr. Ng Eng Leng BERBEL 260 76 13 349
Mr. Wilson Ng BREELE - 76 - 76
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRAELE - 76 - 76
1,040 380 52 1,472
2005
—_TTRF
Executive directors: WITEE -
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles SRS 5 A 520 = 26 546
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 250 - 13 263
Mr. Ng Eng Leng BERBEL 260 = 13 273
Mr. Wilson Ng BREELE - - - -
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEAERE = - - -
Mr. Ng Teow Leng BB & 249 - 12 261
1,279 = 64 1,343

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

INEEFHFES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2005: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2005: one) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, other allowances EXge  H
and benefits in kind REMH &=
Equity-settled share option expenses NERAEE 2 H
Pension scheme contributions RAKEETEIMHER

The remuneration of all non-director, highest paid employees
fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years
ended 31 March 2006 and 2005.

During the year, there were no bonuses paid to or receivable
by any of the five highest paid employees of the Group (2005:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
(2005: Nil).

During the year, share options were granted to a non-director,
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
28 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been charged to the income statement, was
determined as at the date of the grant and was included in
the above non-director, highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

L 32 Bh

FARRNEEHEE 2T = (ZFTTHF:
i) REE  BREZMEFBECEHIIN LXK T
8 R ITMU(ZETRE : —()FEFZHRSH
BERAFEZMEHBHT

Group
AEE
2006 2005
—EERE —ZTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
436 252
BRER X 56 =
22 13
514 265

HE_TENEN_ZTTRH
B FiBEFEEZZ=aEE
1,000,000 7T 2 BRI A °

FZA=+—HItHF
BZME/NFE=

FR - AEEREREANAUESHERS (ZFF
e E) I HEMNERIEA - REBBERE
A REHEEXNME ARSI REMBARE
B ERMBARERE 2 RMLBEREE(CTT
e &) -

TR NUEEFEES (LFER)REALEHE
REFEZRBERBRE  E—TFBERARE
BRI E28HKE - ZFEREZAFEEB(BAK
SRME) DREREBMEE - YEIALEXERE
FESBRFREELFMEER -
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i ¥& ®© B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

10.

TAX

10. HE\

92

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2005: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the

ARFRALERETE RGN MAKE
WEABFEMNSHBEE(CTTRE - £) - RE
iR 2 ERBEMHIR - BREBBIRITE
Bl - ERNED  RAKEREXHBARZH

countries in which the Group operates, based on existing REt& o
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
2006 2005
—2BRE —EFRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Group: rER -
Current — elsewhere and tax charge BIER — Hthith @ R R F B
for the year BIEE (3,172) (1,608)
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Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

10. TAX (Continued) 10. B1E (&)

RAARR REKEAR
HE2BBADER (B

ST i @ 2 VA TE A R G
B)ERAzHEBERE, (X

A reconciliation of the tax credit/(expense) applicable to the
profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the locations

in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to ) BRERBEHE 2 BIEBES (X)) 28R
the tax credit/(expense) at the effective tax rates is as follows: (I
Group - 2006 TEE-—FBF
Hong Kong Singapore Total
BB Ik a&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THERT FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax (including BB AR T, (BE)
loss from discontinued operations) (BREERIEKEE
X% EBE) (22,619) 15,457 (7,162)
Tax at the applicable tax rate RERABEAEZHE 3,958 (3,091) 867
Income not subject to tax BAERRBA 349 114 463
Expenses not deductible for tax TEMBFEX (655) (195) (850)
Tax losses not recognised AERNIBRERE (3,652) - (3,652)
Tax charge at the Group's BAEBEERRXFE
effective rate ZBIEX N = (3.172) (3.172)
Tax charge attributable to ERIEREXBEMN
discontinued operations (note 11) BB (1) —
Tax charge attributable to continuing B RERRELZ
operations reported in the %i““ﬁ‘“ & RIS E(L
consolidated income statement RIS (3.172)
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Rl i

31 March 2006

10. TAX (Continued)

10. B\ (&)

Group — 2005

Profit/(loss) before tax (including
loss from discontinued operations)

Tax at the applicable tax rate

Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's
effective rate

Tax charge attributable to discontinued
operations (note 11)

Tax charge attributable to continuing
operations reported in the
consolidated income statement

94 ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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Hong Kong Singapore Total
N i &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&31)) (E31) (&31)
BrEEATRE T, (B8
(BREERLERSE
Xz ER) (16,405) 8,881 (7,524)
REAMEAE 2HIE 2,871 (1,776) 1,095
BAZRB KA 1,721 168 1,889
EEiL 3 (326) -~ (326)
RERBIEEE (4,266) ~ (4,266)
BASEERMERGHE
ZBIEX N - (1,608) (1,608)
B IERE XN
Z BB (HEE11) _
REEERERBE 2
I ¥ (1,608)
F W
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Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS M. ERLEREER
On 31 August 2005, pursuant to a sale and purchase R-ZZEZRFNRA=1T—H AEEEBUE=
agreement entered into between the Group and an FRIVN—HEEWHZ Bt AEERELEEH
independent third party, the Group agreed to dispose of its RREBERAGAIREMBAR (SBIREER])
entire equity interest in Gadgets Yard Limited and its subsidiary ZEMEE - ERABARREN c RESERSE
(together known as the “GY Group”) together with the relevant Rt BENHEBRBEESZMAZER -
shareholder’s loan. The GY Group is engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of a wide range of toys.
The results of the discontinued operations for the year are AEFERIIREEBCEEZIMT
presented below:
2006 2005
—EBRE —TTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT
Revenue WA 10,795 36,205
Expenses 53 (18,621) (37,922)
Finance costs 3NN (29) -
Loss before tax B AT E 1R (7,855) (1,717)
Tax 1A - =
Loss for the year from the BERIEREXEKZ
discontinued operations KEEEE (7,855) (1,717)
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Rl i

31 March 2006

] T M

ZEEAF=A=1-H

5t

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 11.

BRIEEEXEK (&)

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations

are as follows:

Operating activities rREEH

Investing activities REEH

Financing activities BEEH

Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA/ (i) F8
Loss per share: BREE :

Basic, from the discontinued operations
Diluted, from the discontinued operations

The calculations of basic loss per share from the discontinued
operations are based on:

Net loss attributable to ordinary equity AN/ R
holders of the Company
from the discontinued operations
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year
used in the basic loss FHH
per share calculation

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31 March
2006 and 2005 have not been disclosed as the convertible
note and bonds and share options outstanding during the year
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share from the
discontinued operations.
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AR RABRIEBERK
g RAEKRIERE

AEEERIEKEEKHMEECR S REFHEN
I

2006 2005

—EEXE —EERHE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FAT

(5,696) (2,495)

(189) (569)

4,650 6,120

(1,235) 3,056

HK9.1 cents#E I HK1.3 centsi& 1l

BHEDFA ARMA
ERIEEXGZEBEFE

AEEREAEREERZ
AERCDHEITEBRINE

i N/ATE A N/AZ 3
AEREERIEEEER CERERNEE IR
2006 2005

—EERE —EERF

HK$7,495,0008 7T  HK$1,046,000/% 7T

82,704,014 82,704,014

AR AR RE R E SR F AR ARTTE 2 BRE
BE_TTERFR-_TTRF=-A=FT—HLHF
BErBREABRARREETE HAHIER
BERIEEXB 2 BRBEERSHE



12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

12.

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

ARARBFEARLGAEXBERFE

13.

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2006
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was
HK$8,843,000 (2005: HK$59,434,000 (restated)) (note
29(b)).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

13.

RARRMBEREAREZBE _TTF=A
T+ HALEFEZARAREZFEAREREE
BB FE 58,843,000 L (ZETRHF :
59,434,000 7t (£51])) (KM 5£29(b)) °

FAREERERSAEARLEBRER

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the net loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year of HK$15,994,000 (2005:
HK$12,047,000 (restated)), and the weighted average of
82,704,014 (2005: 82,704,014, restated to reflect the share
consolidation as set out in note 27(b)(iv)) ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the capital
reorganisation during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31 March
2006 and 2005 have not been disclosed as the convertible
note and bonds and share options outstanding during the year
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these
years.

BREAABESENEBRAFE 2 AR EER
BEAERARFEEEEFE5994,0008T (ZEF
HF : 12,047,0008 7T () RAFEEEHTE
FRY 2 INFE 19 882,704,014 0% (48 5 B A I B 7K
FERNETZRAEHLH) (ZTTHF
82,704,0140% + & & 5 JA [ B B £ 27(b) (iv) FT 3L
Sl 2BRMED)FE -

R B 38 M 5B I 2 TR 2 P R 1T 0 2 B AR
HEE-EEAFR-TTEF=A=+—AL
FESRAAFAAERBEYE  HILE
BREZMEEE 2 SRESERSE -
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Rl i

31 March 2006

] T M

ZEEAF=A=1-H

5t

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y& - WERRZRHE

Group KEE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Moulds,  equipment
Leasehold plantand  and motor Construction
Buildings improvements ~ machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE ®AE -BHFE &A - KE-
BT VES R#®E RERAE KEIRE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
31 March 2006 “EEXREZA
=t+-H
At 31 March 2005 and A\_ZTThE=A
at 1 April 2005: =+—-ARR
—ZTRENA
— E 0
Cost or valuation A o B 23,170 22,544 89,023 5,043 32,288 172,068
Accumulated depreciation ZFEHE R
and impairment 1 - (22,438) (82,315) (4,356) (32,288) (141,397)
Net carrying amount REFE 23,170 106 6,708 687 = 30,671
At 1 April 2005, net of R_ZThHF
accumulated depreciation mA—8 - nk
and impairment ZRMERAE 23,170 106 6,708 687 = 30,671
Additions NE = = 185 296 = 481
Disposals HE - (5) (772) (82) - (859)
Impairment W - (46) (3,501)* (326) - (3,873)
Depreciation provided AERHE
during the year Bk (1,303) (39) (2,620) (323) - (4,285)
Transfer to investment BREERENE
properties (note 15) (FaE15) (21,867) - - - - (21,867)
At 31 March 2006, netof RZZEZRF=H
accumulated depreciaton  =+—8 : ik
and impairment ZRMERAE - 16 - 252 - 268
At 31 March 2006: RZZTRE=R
=t+-8:
Cost KA - 24 88,302 1,592 32,288 122,206
Accumulated depreciation ~ REFE R
and impairment 18 - (8) (88,302) (1,340) (32,288) (121,938)
Net carrying amount REFE - 16 - 252 - 268
*  The Group has discontinued its toddler cars segment, cycling tOREERFALERESEE  ERIELEHE

segment and other toys segment after the disposal of the GY
Group during the year. As a result, the directors are of the
opinion that the recoverable value of the relevant moulds, plant
and machinery for manufacturing of toys is minimal. Accordingly,
a full provision for impairment was made for these moulds,
plant and machinery.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. % BERRE (H)

)]

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

Group (Continued)

31 March 2005

At 31 March 2004 and
at 1 April 2004:

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2004, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Write-off

Revaluation

Depreciation provided
during the year

At 31 March 2005, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 March 2005:

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

“TERE=A
=+—H

RZEENFE=A
=t+—HER
“ZZNENA
_El:

XA % fih (B
ZBWER
HE

REFE

R-ZZEZME
mA—H - Mk
SRNERNE

NE

i sH

Bfh

KEFHERE

R-ZZEZERF=A
=+—8 1k
2RMERAE

R-TLTRE
ZA=t—8:
X AN 35 1 B
ZRMERAE

fREHE

Analysis of cost or valuation: X RS EES T :

At cost
At 31 March 2005 valuation

B A
B-_ZETHE
=A=1+—H
]

rEE (F)

Furniture,

fixtures,

Moulds, equipment

Leasehold plant and and motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
_HE BR-BE R KB \
BT NEKE k#E RERAE ERETRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET TET TAET TET
(Restated)

B
23,790 22,620 88,512 4976 32,288 172,186
- (22,411) (75,569) (4,089) (32,288)  (134,357)
23,790 209 12,943 887 = 37,829
23,790 209 12,943 887 = 37,829
- 24 511 146 = 681
- (72) - (39) - (111)
1,164 = = = = 1,164
(1,784) (55) (6,746) (307) - (8,892)
23,170 106 6,708 687 = 30,671
23,170 22,544 89,023 5,043 32,288 172,068
- (22,438) (82,315) (4,356) (32,288)  (141,397)
23,170 106 6,708 687 = 30,671
= 22,544 89,023 5,043 32,288 148,898
23,170 = = = = 23,170
23,170 22,544 89,023 5,043 32,288 172,068
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Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. NE - - BWERSZE (&)
Company PN
Furniture, fixtures
equipment and
motor vehicles
B -#£EB RERR/E
2006 2005
ZBEARF —_ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
At 31 March: R=R=+—8:
Cost or valuation BX AR 3k {4 18 631 615
Accumulated depreciation RREHER
and impairment DERIE] (610) (574)
Net carrying amount FREFE 21 41
At 1 April, net of accumulated RIOA—H 1k
depreciation and impairment REHEREE 21 41
Additions NE - 16
Depreciation provided REFHE
during the year B (9) (36)
At 31 March, net of accumulated R=ZA=+—8 KRR
depreciation and impairment BITE RRE 12 21
At 31 March: R=R=+—8:
Cost DN 631 631
Accumulated depreciation REHER
and impairment DERIE] (619) (610)
Net carrying amount FREFE 12 21

Had the Group's leasehold buildings been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$23,170,000 as at 31 March 2005.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWHE
Group
rEE
2006 2005
—EEARF —EEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER TAT
Cost: DN
Transfer from owner-occupied BEREXTEADE
properties (note 14) (Mt&E14) 21,867 -
Accumulated depreciation: RIEWE -
Provided for the year RNEERME (430) -
Net book value: BREFE
At end of year FiR 21,437 -

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31
March 2006 was HK$2 1,560,000 based on valuation performed
by Knight Frank Petty Limited, a firm of independent
professionally qualified valuers, on a depreciated replacement
cost basis at 31 March 2006.

At 31 March 2006, all of the Group's investment properties
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 21).

REFBZREVER_TEERNFZA=Z+—RHZ
NFEER21,560,0008 T - EEBEINRESE
VEEAERMEMERE « HIWAFMITERA
AR -_EEREZAZ+ HABRFEEEXAK
BETZHEERE o

R_BBAF=A=+—R AEEZ2HRE

YWEBEERT  UREAEEER 2 —RKRIF1TE
B (ftzE21) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 3% |(Q]



NOTES TO FINANCIAL
Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

STATEMENTS

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

16. AN T B ERE

Group
rEH
2006 2005
—EERE “TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTET
Carrying amount at 1 April RMA—BZKREE
As previously reported NI - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 (note 2.3(a)) HRMEBEB G ERFE17H 2
# & (M5£2.3@)) 31,272 32,000
31,272 32,000
Recognised during the year AR F S R (728) (728)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HBZEHEE 30,544 31,272
Current portion mENE D (728) (728)
Non-current portion IEMmENEB 29,816 30,544

The prepaid land lease payments are paid for the right to use
certain lands under long term leases in Mainland China.

Pursuant to various sale and purchase agreements (the “S&P
Agreements”) entered into between the Group and an
independent third party, during the years 1998 and 1999, the
Group acquired certain land use rights (the “Land") in Mainland
China with a carrying value of HK$26,416,000 as at 31 March
2006 (2005: HK$27,041,000). Pursuant to the S&P
Agreements, the Group is required to pay annual fees of
HK$118,000 in respect of the Land commencing from 2008
up to 2048 with a 20% increment for every five years starting
from 2008 (note 32).
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AN EERRDRREHEOERLR G
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R—AANER—ANANFHRE  REAZERE
BYBE=RFIM2ZEEE R ([EEHE])
AEBRFPREAMKEE T LHFEAE([&ZL
W)  ZETWR _EEARNF=ZA=+—"HZ2EH
B/526,416,0008 L (ZZEZTRHF : 27,041,000/
) cMEEEWNZ AT N\FHHBEE_-Z
MNFRIE  AEBARZ I FFEE 118,000
B WEABZZEZENFRERFIEM20% (5T
32) °



16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

16. AL HERKE (&)

17.

The Group has not yet obtained the land use rights certificate
for the Land. Having consulted with the Group’s Mainland
China lawyers, the director's considered that the Group has
the right to use the Land and after the payment of a premium
of approximately HK$13,400,000 and attending the necessary
administrative procedures, the Group should be able to obtain
the land use rights certificate for the Land.

At 31 March 2006, the Group's prepaid land lease payments
with a value of HK$4,128,000 were pledged to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group (note 21).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

REBWREZ I HMES LT HAES - TFEN
REBCHBEME  EERA - ASEHER
FA#Z T o A AF 45 (B 49 13,400,000 7T &
MEBEMBECITHRFER  ASEEATHERZLIM
Z T AREE -

RZZEERE=A=+—H8 AE£EEEE
4,128,000 L 2 BN LA EFIBE A - LA
NEAEEERZ —RIBTEE (HE21) o

17. AMBRARIZRE

Unlisted shares, at cost

B R EEE

Less: Provision for impairment

=NV A
B ORI B

Due from a subsidiary
Less: Provision for impairment

The amount due from a subsidiary included in the Company's
current assets is unsecured, interest-free, and has no fixed
terms of repayment. The carrying amount of this amount due
from a subsidiary, after provision for impairment, approximates
to its fair value.

FLEMBD  ERAE

Company
PN

2006 2005
—BBRAF —TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THET
68,709 68,709
(68,709) (68,709)
212,467 217,922
(212,467) (217,922)

AARRBZRBEEZMBARRKAEE
W REREBTEERY ZFWEQRRKH
BERBREFR EAEEEQNTEERMAS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

17. RINB LR ZRE (&)
ARREBHBARIZERDMT :

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

|04 ANNUAL

follows:
Place of Nominal Percentage of
incorporation/ value of issued equity attributable
registration ordinary to the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct  Indirect  activities
AL, ERTEER ARAREGEZEDL
28 GRS ES-$:E RAE2HEE EE ME IEXHB
Hung Cheong Holdings British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$2,004 100 - Investment holding
Limited ("BVI")/Hong Kong I @A% 2,004 T KREER
HEERERAA RBRURS /B
Able Market Profits Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
HERAHS L@ERIET RERR
Xin Toys Factory Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$4 - 100  Ceased business
MEITTABAR A A RBRURS /B L@R4aET during the year
ERAFERA
BRIEEE
Xin Toys International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Ceased business
Limited BB L@k T during the year
eI ABRARA A ERAFEER
mIEEE
Huang Chiang Chen Hung Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 Property holding
Cheong Plastics Factory N Non-voting deferred MERA
Company Limited HK$10,000%
RITHESZEBR EAB,0008 T
AR T ERERETRN
10,0007 7T *
Xin Procurement & Singapore Ordinary S$10,000 51  Supply and
Trading Pte. Ltd. T I3K 38 A% 10,0005 AN 3 T procurement of

(“Xin Procurement")

REPORT 2006 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

17. RB AR ZRE (&

*

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends other
than a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per
annum on the excess of the net profit over
HK$1,000,000,000,000 that the company may determine to
distribute in respect of any financial year. On a winding-up, the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares are entitled, out of
the surplus assets of the company, to a return of the capital
paid-up on the non-voting deferred shares held by them, after a
total sum of HK$1 trillion had been distributed in such a winding-
up in respect of each of the ordinary shares of the company.
Save as described above, the holders of the non-voting deferred
shares are not entitled to any participation in the profit or surplus
assets of the company and shall not be entitled to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the

company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

* EEEREEROIIFBEA C BEKDAA

RAERMEREE - AR R 0] 88 TE & 5%F &

Ik 3% R % A F %8 1,000,000,000,00058 7T 2

HECETHEEZBRE - Rtz - BRE

BEERMNIFEABBKEIKRE - FHRE -

BERERETERNIFBEABERARGRE
LM% K4 ££1,000,000,000,000/8 7T 1% °

RERSHECERERELTKD - BRA
ZHRHBBEETEEECHER - (R LulitEs

oh - BERBELERNDFTAEANERED Z QA
Z;ﬁ%‘J@ﬁﬁ%éF F AR ERERARZ
BRAGEE  XLFZFASLHES LR

&=
o~ °

BEERA LRAIZARFMBRREAFE

%ﬁﬁiziwa'ﬁﬁﬁ$%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁz
TEHD - BFZRA FMEMHBARKER
%%@%Rﬁo

length.
18. INVENTORIES 18. B8

Group

rEE
2006 2005
ZBBAF —ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Raw materials R - 3,313
Work in progress + X - 656
Finished goods SURY G - 3,303
Goods held for resale BFEEE 2 EM 2,073 2,630
2,073 9,902
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Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

19. B RN

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one month, extending up to three to six months for major
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Account
receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of
the accounts receivable approximate to their fair values.

An aged analysis of the accounts receivable at the balance
sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of allowances, is

as follows:

Within 30 days 30HA

31 to 60 days 31Z60H A
61 to 90 days 61E90H A
91 to 180 days 91Z180H K
Over 180 days HiE180H
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BRMEF—RFERAMNFIEN  AEEFEETF
CESBRBRUGERET  GEH—RKRRHY—E
B MEEXFAAERE=Z2AEA - BEK
iii’]ﬁ 2EERE AREEEe TSRS

fEER - BRI DA ET R - BN 2 REE
Eﬁiﬁi\ﬂﬁ{gfﬁﬁ

REER  REZE BB RBKRBRERZEEIRR
R DT

Group

ZN
2006 2005
—EEARF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
13,138 13,299
10,629 9,625
13,083 7,962
17,046 5,495
3,795 5,082
57,691 41,463




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. ERERR
An aged analysis of the accounts payable at the balance sheet REEBR  REZRHZENERER TN
date, based on invoice date, is as follows: T
Group
rEE
2006 2005
—BBAF —ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
Within 30 days 308 A 6,848 12,148
31 to 60 days 31260H A 2,868 3,453
61 to 90 days 61E90H A 372 1,676
91 to 180 days 91E£180H K 591 2,779
Over 180 days #iE180H 2,246 1,908
12,925 21,964
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally BNBERRTD AT E R —BRR60B A& - BN
settled on 60 day terms. The carrying amounts of the accounts RZEHEREATEEESE

payable approximate to their fair values.
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Rl 5 ¥ © B BE

31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

21. A ERTHERREAMER

Effective
interest
rate (%)
BRAE (%)
Bank loans - secured RITER (FER) 6.3%
Other loan - unsecured A E R (EER) 4.0%
Bank loans repayable within AN—FREEZ
one year RITER
Other loan repayable: EEEBEER :
Within one year —FR
In the second year F_E
Total aat

(=)
Portion classified as current liabilities A BARBEEZEH
Long term portion RHHH

At 31 March 2006, the banking facilities of the Group were
supported by:

(a) certain investment properties and prepaid land lease
payments of the Group in Mainland China with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$25,565,000
(2005: HK$43,200,000) (notes 15 and 16); and

(b) corporate guarantees executed by certain subsidiaries of
the Company.
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Group Company
rEE YN
2006 2005 2006 2005

Z2RRE _—TTHF ZEFAE _—TTIHF

Maturity HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

1 year —F 15,884 20,297 - =
1 year =4 2,000 8,500 2,000 8,500
17,884 28,797 2,000 8,500

15,884 20,297 - -

2,000 6,500 2,000 6,500

- 2,000 - 2,000

2,000 8,500 2,000 8,500

17,884 28,797 2,000 8,500

(17,884) (26,797 (2,000) (6,500)

- 2,000 - 2,000

RZFBERFZA=1+—8  AKREZRITARE
AT 3 &R AE R R

(@) AEBEER®AEL255650008TT(—TZTH

F 1 43,200,00087T) <& THERNMIEED
ENEM T EERE (ME15k16) &

(b) ARBEETHERARMEL 2 ARER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl i

31 March 2006
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—FEAFZA=+-A

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued) 21. sSTERTERREMER (&)
During the year ended 31 March 2005, a loan of BE-_TTAF-A=1+T—HLFER IR
HK$10,000,000 was granted by the holder of convertible note ZEEFEA(ZEERSE A]) 110,000,000 7T
(the “Note Holder") to surrogate the outstanding principal ZEF  ABARAXNENATRRERRAA
amount of the convertible note due to the Note Holder. The ZAMBRRBRAEHE ZEERRELRR - F
loan is unsecured, bears interest at 4% per annum and is BENE - UERB-ZEERF=ABUANEAZTESD
repayable by six quarterly instalments from March 2005 HEE -
onwards.
All the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bear interest st B SR 1T i K M H b £5 5 2 2B 13 DA & T ) &= 5t
at fixed rates. B o
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company's current AEBERARARAZABERZEHEEZLRATE
borrowings approximate their fair values. The carrying amounts BERE AKEZERDERZEEAERRFE
and fair value of the Group’s non-current borrowings are as BT :
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair value
REE NYEE
2006 2005 2006 2005
—REAE —TTHE ZTFRF —TTIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET
Other loan H &% - 2,000 - 1,905
22. LOANS FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY 22. EEERLARAREZER

The loans from the immediate holding company were
unsecured and bore interest at the rate of 3% per annum
above the prime lending rate offered from time to time by
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
amount was fully settled in current year.

BEEREBRARRH ERLEER  URFL L
BESRTERLRAITRERZZEBEEERN X
M=EE - FRAFECRAFEABBELR -
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31 March 2006

i ¥& = B

ZEEAF=A=1-H

5t

23. LOANS FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 23. PEREREZEXR
The loans were advanced by certain minority shareholders of ZEEFHASENBARIZE TLEKRRE
the Group's subsidiaries. The loans are unsecured and interest- # AREEAREE - REBASEEZH @M
free. Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreements entered into BARZVBRRIILZBRRGZE  PERRE
between the Group and the minority shareholders of the AETSEREEZSEENR  RIESZEHEMNBER
respective subsidiaries, the minority shareholders have agreed AIBRENEERELERRE FARGEASEME
not to demand the repayment of the loans until the respective BERELZAERE - PEBRRREHRZERZER
subsidiaries have the ability to do so and have obtained prior EEAEQXFEEESE -
consent from the Group for the repayment of the loans. The
carrying amounts of the loans from minority shareholders
approximate to their fair values.
24. DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER AND A RELATED
COMPANY 24, EN— 228 RRER—EHBEEARNRE
The amounts due to a minority shareholder and a related BN —B2LBRER —HBEEQAIREBELAER
company are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms W R2ELEETENSH BN —RIBBRER
of repayment. The carrying amounts of the amounts due to a —BRERRFBELREEREARATFEEMRS
minority shareholder and a related company approximate to
their fair values.
25. CONVERTIBLE NOTE AND BONDS 25 TRRRBERES
Group and Company
FEERARQT
2006 2005
—2BRE —EFRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & THERT FAET
(Restated)
(Z31)
Convertible note issued to 317 F Vision Century,Z
Vision Century CE:YE 37 (a) 26,674 -
Convertible bonds issued to the BT TREZAIBREKES
Bank Group (as defined below) (E&ERTX) (b) - 2 155
26,674 2,155
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTE AND BONDS (Continued)

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

25. fEREERES (&

(a)

(b)

On 30 March 2006, the Company issued a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$37,000,000, as part
of the consideration for the release and discharge of the
Group from all of its obligations and liabilities in respect
of a loan advanced by Vision Century. Vision Century will
have the right to convert the outstanding principal amount
of the convertible note into shares at any time before 29
March 2009 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.205
per conversion share. The convertible note carry interest
at a rate of 1% per annum, which is payable semi-annually
in arrears on 31 March and 30 September.

On 1 February 2002, the Group has entered into a bank
compromise agreement with the Group’s Hong Kong
bankers (the "Bank Group"”). Pursuant to the bank
compromise agreement, the Bank Group was issued
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$6,500,000 by the Company on 16 May 2002, as part
of the consideration for the release and discharge of the
Group from all of its obligations and liabilities in respect
of bank borrowings advanced by the Bank Group. The
convertible bonds bear interest at the rate of 5% per
annum and are repayable by three instalments on each
anniversary of issue. Interest is payable semi-annually.
The convertible bonds would be convertible into the
Company's ordinary price of HK$0.2228 per share, as
adjusted.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the

issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate for a

similar bond without a conversion option. The residual amount

is assigned as the equity component and is included in

shareholders’ equity.

(a)

(b)

RZZBEZERF=ZA=1+H  ARAETLE
#137,000,0008 7T 2 AT AR & - {ERMERR
K % Bk A & B 3t Vision Century® %z 2 B3
ARz —NEEREEZEHHKE - Vision
Centuy BV _ZEZNF=A_+NLBA
BEREITRREBER 2ASBRNTRR
EEREZKRH02058 TEHER BN - ATk
REBRFNE-EFE  ARBF=A=
T—BRAAZTHEXFRHRIH—

Mo
IN °

R-ZFEZ-_F-_A—RH A5EELXEEY
EBARRIT([RE])FTLRITEBHE -
BREZRTEZ GBS BER-_TT=_FH
AT NBERRREITAEEE6,500000%

LA BRIES  ERRE R RN R ER
REBX CRITERMAREZ —VEER
BEZHMIRE ZTRREFFLSAE

DRI MBREFETESEBEF AR
BoMESEFIMN—K c ATRERFATIR
i%ozm%nX%ﬂ%XZE@E%@ﬁﬁ
Nz E

B e

RETHERUEBNBERBEZLRBER ZHEE
MGHERGEFBEBOZRFEE MEKSER

Bl
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTE AND BONDS (Continued) 25. TRRRBRES (&)
The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible K BE éééﬁ—ﬁﬁ REEREETEHRIESED D
note and bonds have been split between the liability and RABEDAOREXSLS  ZEBEWT
equity components, as follows:
Convertible Convertible Convertible
note issued bonds issued note issued
to Vision to the Bank to Wise Wind
Century Group Limited
BTF BTF BOFHE
Vision CenturyZ HEZ BERARZ
TRREE TBRE %S TRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FEL
Nominal values of the convertible note RAREEETZA
and bonds issued in prior years BREBEREFEE - 6,500 16,000
Equity component B - (517) (2,123)
Interest expenses in prior years NEFEFNERX - 918 2,292
Interest paid in prior years NEEEENHME - (516) (803)
Repayment made in prior years NEEEERZHE - (2,167) -
Liability component at 1 April 2004 R_ZTTWFEA—HZ
BEED - 4218 15,366
Interest expenses for the year BHE_ZTRE=A=1+—H
ended 31 March 2005 IEFEZFERX - 224 944
Interest paid for the year HE_ZTRH=A=1-H
ended 31 March 2005 EFEZERNME - (121) (310)
Repayment made during the year HE_TTHS=-A=1—H
ended 31 March 2005 EFEEREEZTE - (2,166) (6,000)
Loan granted by Note Holder FEREARTZER
(note 21) (FsE21) - - (10,000)
Liability component at 1 April 2005 RN-FEZRAFMA-BZ
AEHn - 2,155 =
Nominal values of the convertible note AERRTZIARRERE
issued in current year 37,000 - -
Equity component EmED (10,344) - -
Interest expenses for the year AERZFERX 18 12 -
Repayment made in current year REEEEZRA - (2,167) -
Liability component at RZEERE=ZA=1+—H
31 March 2006 ZBEHD 26,674 - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. DEFERRED TAX

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

26. EERE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$25,100,000 (2005: HK$24,406,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in companies that have been loss-making for some
time.

The Group and the Company had no unprovided deferred tax

AEBREBEBESE 2 HIEEER25,100,000% 7T
(ZZZTRHF : 24,406,000/ L)  ATERHA A 1
HERBBRZABZRARERBER - AEE
VTERZEFEERRECHBEEE  ARSEHBE
DHESRGEE BREZRRESE -

=R=1t—8 AEERARER

R_TBTRF
at 31 March 2006. EAEMARREBELHRA
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. R&
2006 2005
—EERE —ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Authorised: ETERA
10,000,000,000 (2005: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0008% (ZZEZ R F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,0008% ) & ik & &
0.01BTTZ BEK 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREERAE :
82,704,014 (2005: 1,654,080,285) 82,704,014 (— BT H4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 1,654,080,285/%) & i E &
0018 T2 EBK 827 16,541
The following changes in the Company's issued share capital RARIZBBETRAREZE _SZEHEN_ZZT
took place during the years ended 31 March 2005 and 2006: NEZRA=+—HItEEZEFHNT:

(a) On 23 February 2005, the Company effected an open
offer with assured allotments of one offer share for every
two shares of HK$0.01 each held by shareholders as at 4
February 2005 and issued a total of 551,360,095 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of
HK$0.04 per share. Cash proceeds of approximately
HK$22,055,000, before the related expenses, were
received by the Company. The excess of the offer price
over the nominal value of the shares issued amounting
to approximately HK$16,541,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

@) P"ZZEZRF-_A-+=8 " ARAEKD
REE R RIEEBAREAR=-ZZR
F_HOASREMKREREE0NIETL L
BmERE —REERD - AARIERETE
FH80.04%8 174 551,360,095 & AR E
BHOOITETLZHEER - AAAERHE2IK
# #922,055,0008 T (RIBAEBEER) - %
EEEBAMBETROMEBEZCENAS
16,541,000 T + Est ARMDAEER -
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Rl i

31 March 2006
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ZEEAF=A=1-H
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

27. BRA& (&)

(b) Pursuant to a special resolutions passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2005,

a capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)

involving, inter alia, the following steps was implemented:

0)

a reduction of the nominal value of each issued share
from HK$0.01 each to HK$0.0005 each by the
cancellation of HK$0.0095 per share (the “Capital
Reduction”);

(ii) the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the

credit of the share premium account of the Company
(the “Share Premium Cancellation”);

(iii) the credit arising from the Capital Reduction and the

Share Premium Cancellation were transferred to the
contributed surplus account of the Company where
they had utilised to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company as at 30 September 2004; and

(iv) subject to the forthwith upon the Capital Reduction

|14 ANNUAL

and Share Premium Cancellation, a consolidation of
every 20 issued shares of HK$0.0005 each into one
consolidated share of HK$0.01 each.
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(b) BREARRAR _TEAFAA-T=HE]T

ZBREBHARE LBEBZHRIIRER

ZIN/N

AEmRAEAE ([RAEA])  BASHE (H
AR NISR

0)

(it)

ETHEERED 2 EE0.00958 T
ER{TRH 2 SREER0.017 TR
A& 80.0005% 7T (A A AR )

EHARARNDEER ERBEH
(TAxfn m B ])

(i) B HIR M B 0 i B R 38 2 PrEE £ B

HEBRALRB CEHBRE  ZFXK
RAEREAEARAR-_ZZTNFNA
“tHZREBEEE &

(iv) BB MR EEEHETKRE - I

EZEEBEZERT  B_+RERE
{E0.00058 L Z E BTN A A I
BREECOIB T ZAHRD -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 27. & (&)
A summary of the transactions during the years ended 31 HE_TTRFER_ZETRF=-A=1+—HLF
March 2005 and 2006 with reference to the above movements BETEHEEARRREHTEBRRAESH 2
in the Company'’s issued ordinary share capital is set out below: RZMEHINMT:
Issued capital ERITRA
Number of Issued Share
shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTROBE ERTRE BROHOBER &t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt & TET TAET TAET
At 1 April 2004 i

As previously reported PO 1,102,720,190 11,027 43,303 54,330

Prior period adjustment in =~ BB ABRKRES 2

respect of convertible Al B 58 & (15 2.5(b))

bonds (note 2.5(b)) - - 351 351
As restated El 1,102,720,190 11,027 43,654 54,681
Issued on open offer NEABEEMET (a) 551,360,095 5514 16,541 22,055
Share issue expenses BROBETRX - - (1,165) (1,165)
At 31 March 2005 R-_ZEERAF=A=1t—-HER

and 1 April 2005 —TTREMA—R (EF)

(as restated) 1,654,080,285 16,541 59,030 75,571
Capital Reorganisation RAEMA (b) (1,571,376,271) (15,714) (59,030) (74,744)
At 31 March 2006 RZBEEREF=ZA=F+—H 82,704,014 827 - 827
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

28. lERHERTE

|]16 ANNUAL

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company's directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company's
shareholders, and any minority shareholders in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 30 December
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%, in
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company
on the adoption date of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"). Options which lapsed in accordance with the terms of
this Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In
addition, any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company's shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

REPORT 2006 3§

RAvRAE—EHERESE (T8 - Zité
ZCEMRHASEZEERNELERMZAERE
HELRTEBRER ZitdlcaER2HE
BARRZER (BEBUIENTES)  ~A5H
Hihg8 - AEBE 2 ERIRBEEHER  A5E
ZEFE - ARABRERARRNBAR 2 EFD
BBE - -ZAER T _F+_A=+H4E
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FEH10%F »
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RIBZAT B A BE R 2 A R] T BT 2 D &
ZIAEEBEREKAZTEBRARRBEHTRA
HEZ10%([FHEXERE]) - FFHEFERKER
BRI A ARBZA BRRR R BAE -
REFM+—EASMER  REZAETETTE
RERSEEZRN LRBB AERRF D HITR
021% ° LBRBEMBE L ERZBERE - &
ARBRRIPBRRFHIASG LA -

BFAQBIEMES  FETBRABRFERR
FEEZEMBEALTZBREALRAARBY
FERITEBZAIME - LN MARAEERE
HBUIRTESTSIFEZAMBEBEALRTGE
AR - WA ER12E A SMBR AR REMR
BREDETRG Z0. 1%L EEREEHAXS
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

28. BRESE (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors in their absolute discretion, but in any event shall not
be less than the greater of (i) the closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of share options; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

&ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ZL NN BB R 308 A%

N ABRABINRBAREBEH BT - FIRE
BREsTFHHESETNZEEMRA AR
BERE)KIE -

TEBIVHEZSERETE  ETBERUATR
mE (VAR ARNAERER L B HBERRA
BRBERAAB/ZWTE ()R B ERE
FEBHAAEEXBEMIAMEERERMTK
ZFHWTE : KA DR ZBRHEE -

BREYERETEREAEDRREIERRAK
SREZIER -
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31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

28. R ESTE (&)

Number of share options

BREHA
Name or catergory Granted Lapsed At
of paticipant during the year during the year 31 March 2006
R-BERF

SREERZARA RERRE  REAXR =ZA=t-H
Directors
=
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 800,000 - 800,000
aRE L
Mr. Yu Wai Man 800,000 - 800,000
SEXE
Mr. Wilson Ng 800,000 - 800,000
BEREELL
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 800,000 - 800,000
BREALE
Mr. Ng Eng Leng 800,000 = 800,000
EEMLL

4,000,000 = 4,000,000
Other employees 900,000 (100,000) 800,000
A&
Total 4,900,000 (100,000) 4,800,000
Az
AR

| |8 ANNUAL REPORT 2006 43§

Price of Company's shares***

KRARM B
Exercisable

Date of grant price of At grant

of share Exercisable period share date of

options* of share options options™*  options

BRE BRE RERE

BB BREGTES fTE"* BRLEH

HKS HK$

BT BT

29-07-05 29-07-05 to 0.295 0.295
“2TRfF 28-07-07
tAZTAE ZZZRELA-ThHZ
ZEEHFEAZTNR

29-07-05 29-07-05 to 0.295 0.295
“2TRF 28-07-07
tAZTAE ZZZRELA-ThHZ
ZEEEFEEAZTAR

29-07-05 29-07-05 to 0.295 0.295
“2TRfF 28-07-07
tAZTNAE ZZZRELA-ThHZE
ZEEEFEEAZTAR

29-07-05 29-07-05 to 0.295 0.295
“ZTRF 28-07-07
tAZTAE ZZZRELA-ThHZ
ZEEEFEEAZTAR

29-07-05 29-07-05 to 0.295 0.295
—ZTRfF 28-07-07
tAZTAE ZZZRELA-ThHZE
ZEEHFEEAZTAR

29-07-05 29-07-05 to 0.295 0.295

ZETRR 28-07-07
tAZthEBE Z—EERf+tA-thBZ
“ES+F+AZtN\H
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

28. BRESE (&)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding during the
year:

*  The share options granted to directors and other employees are
vested upon granted.

** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustments
in the case of capitalisation of profit and reserve, right or bonus
issues, consolidation, subdivision or reduction of the share capital
or other alternative in the capital structure of the Company.

***  The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of
the grant of the share options is the closing price as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the
options.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 4,800,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 4,800,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$48,000 and share premium of HK$1,368,000
(before issue expenses).

Pursuant to the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders at the special general meeting held on 23 May
2005, the Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed. As at the
date of the special general meeting held on 23 May 2005,
there was an aggregate of 82,704,014 shares in issue. Upon
the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit, the Company
may grant options entitling holders thereof to subscribe for
8,270,401 shares. Further details of the refreshment were
disclosed in the circular dated 29 April 2005.

FRRRITE 2 BREHRRME

PO RTEFREMESEZBRERNKEKEE

R R B A AT IR SR B ATAR -
BiR & G D HABABIR - AR T2 BARE
WA GRS - BB TEEATAE -

O NBRERBBBEREZARRARDER RN
REZBRERL SN —ERX5 B EBIMZ
BRBERMRZETE -

REHER - REBEZFE - A2 75 4,800,00017 i
BRERRITE -ERARIRBEREAEET » B
1T 8RN 2 B AR 1% 38 B35 17 4,800,000 88 A A 7]
BBONE AR X BB SN AN 48,0008 7T + A Ko 0B B
TR X AR 17 % {8 1,368,000 7T °

BERERARRE_STAFRAA-_+=ZHE
AZBRFEHNAS BB EBRER ;8K
BREETEH - RBRERFIAER1T2H (A1
TTZRFRA-+Z=H) BETROHALZEA
82,704,014 - HEIRERBEEH%E - XA
R E ARES 270,401 IR p 2 BB - 3%
BEH E—SHBERARRIE_STREMN
AZ+ThBZBEEE -
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28.
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ZEEAF=A=1-H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

28.

BRETR (B)

29.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 4,800,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 5.8% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$466,000.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2006:

Expected volatility (%) 55.00
Historical volatility (%) 55.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.35
Expected life of option (year) 2.00

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past two years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

DEFICITS

29.

RAFHHRERILAEBY - RIEZE - ARAE
4,800,00017 & B iR RATHE - WVEARRRINZA
Z B E#EITR 7 5.8% °

FRERE ZERE 2 ATFEEE466,000/8 T ©

REREE 2 LRSS R RE Y AT EEDR
EHEMEA - EXA ST EERCEEE LS
BB R R o TRESINBE TS
AEZAZ+H- AL FEEARREREAZE
% -

8 HA R 18 (%) 55.00
FE 52 8% 1@ (%) 55.00
2= [ f2 7 & (%) 3.35
BREZERERS (F) 2.00

BREZEHERADBREBEMF2ELBE
BE YT —EERARHRITERN - BHY
B S R SEOR IR AT AR R R R E 2 AR - BR
BREBRER

AEATEBERYEFROREBREZEME
A 1

|20 ANNUAL

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's deficits and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
financial statements.
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29. DEFICITS (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. E#h (&)

Rl i

31 March 2006

] T M

—FEAFZA=+-A

5t

(b) Company

At 1 April 2004

Prior year adjustment in
respect of convertible note
and bonds (note 2.5(b))

As restated

Issued on open offer
(note 27(a))
Share issue expenses
Loss for the year (as restated)

At 31 March 2005
(as restated)

At 1 April 2005
As previously reported

Prior year adjustment in
respect of convertible bond
(note 2.5(b))

As restated

Capital Reorganisation
(note 27(b)(iv))

Redemption of convertible
bonds

Equity-settled share option
arrangement

Share option lapsed
during the year

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2006

RZETNENA—H

BERTRREBERES
LEEHE
(K 7E2.5(b))

3]

NRBEERET
(K :£27(@a))

B ETRX

KEEER ()

R-_ETRE
ZA=+—H (&%)

n

k1l

ZERFMWA—H
24

am|
>g9d

1

BRUBEKRESZ
EEREK
(K zE2.5(b))

&7
RAEE

(B 527 (b) (iv)
BEAHRES

s EE 2 R
25

RNERKB BRI
AEEBR

RZZEERE

=A=t+-H

(b) &AF
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total
K 0B & EXEy BRERE 2EER Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TAET TET TAET
43,303 - - (48,485) (5,182)
351 - - (120) 231
43,654 . = (48,605) (4,951)
16,541 = = = 16,541
(1,165) - - - (1,165)
- - - (59,434)  (59,434)
59,030 = - (108039)  (49,009)
58,679 ~ - (107,183)  (48,504)
351 - = (856) (505)
59,030 - - (108,039)  (49,009)
(59,030) 3,085 = 71,659 15,714
= = = 517 517
= = 466 = 466
- - 9) 9 -
- - - (8,843) (8,843)
- 3,085 457 (44,697) (41,155)
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31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

30. GEBEREXRMT

(a) Major non-cash transactions

The Group had the following major non-cash transactions
during the year ended 31 March 2005 and 2006:

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2005, a holder of
convertible note granted a loan to the Group of
HK$10,000,000 to surrogate the then outstanding
principal amount of the convertible note which did
not result in any cash flow.

(i) At 30 March 2006, HK$37,856,000 (being the
principal amount of a loan of HK$31,378,000 and
accrued interest of HK$6,478,000) was owed by the
Company to Vision Century. On the same date, the
Company issued to Vision Century a convertible note
in the principal amount of HK$37,000,000 as part
of the consideration for the release and discharge of
the Group from all of its obligations and liabilities in
respect of the loan advanced by Vision Century. The
Company settled the remaining accrued interest of
HK$856,000 by cash from internal resources (note

25(a)).
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(a)

TEFBERS
REBEE_ZZAFR_TERF=A=1+—
AEFEAR  "EEZETUTEIEZEAS

R

0)

(ii)

REE-_ZTRE=-A=+—HILEE
W —ZABRREERFEARAEER
F—IEE 10,000,000/ T © A ARE
BANERAREEZTEAREEASR
BORBRERIESHARNRERE

RZZEERNE=ZA=1+H ' KRARER
Vision Century 37,856,000/ 7t (Bl & &
A & %8 31,378,000/ 7T # & 5t Il B
6,478,000 7T) ° A H » AR B EITAR
% #37,000,0008B TZ AT MIRER T
Vision Century * {E R R 2R A EE
i Vision Century® X 2 B3 AEE 2
—PEERABZHINRE - ARAE
HABEREMNRE B ES T ERF
8,856,000/ 7T (M #E25(a)) °
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3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Continued) 30. MERERERMKT (&)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEKBLR
2006 2005
—EERE —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: BHEEE (B1&)FH :
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMRE 859 -
Inventories FE 9,138 =
Accounts receivable JE UL BR R 4,312 =
Prepayments, deposits and ENRIE - R REM
other receivables & T AR 5K 697 17
Cash and bank balances REMBITER 1,861 1
Accounts payable JE& -1 BR 3K (2,793) (6,602)
Other payables and accruals H fth & 1< BR X % JE 7T 5K I8 (594) (1,431)
Loans from a minority shareholder —LERREHRZER (5,880) -
Amount due to a director ERHBRR .z — L
of a subsidiary EEXE (4,650) -
Tax payable J& B 7 18 - (5)
Minority interests LEBRRER 1,552 -
4,502 (8,020)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & B AR s 66 8,030
4,568 10
Satisfied by: XFE
Cash R& 4,568 10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2006 =—BEXF=ZA=+-H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued) 30.

GELEREBRMWEE (&)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

Cash consideration BeRE
Cash and bank balances disposed of FIHERE RBITERF

Net inflow of cash and cash HEWBARZRE R
equivalents in respect of the ReFEMRAFRE

disposal of subsidiaries
The results of the subsidiaries disposed of in the year ended
31 March 2005 had no significant impact on the Group's

consolidated turnover or loss before tax for that year.

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31.

(b) HEMBAR (&)

RHEEMNBRAZESKEASSEMANTF
BAFWT -

2006 2005

—EERE —TTRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT T

4,568 10

(1,861) (M

2,707 9

REE-_TTRF=A=1+—BILFEHEZMH
BRAZEBEHAEBEZFELEAEREEXR

RABRYETMNERTE -

EERA

Details of the Group's bank and other borrowings, which are
secured by assets of the Group, are included in notes 15, 16
and 21 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bl i%5 ¥k © BI 5%
31 March 2006 =—BEAF=ZF=+—-H
32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. BEHERH
(a) As lessor (@) UHEBAEH
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) AEERBLKLEHERHFHEEREDE (I
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated i15)  MAmZEHRA—F -
for terms of one year.
At 31 March 2006, the Group had total future minimum RZBEERF=ZA=1+—08 A£EEREHRE
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases MPEIM 2 TR RGELREHE RN T3 F 5
with its tenants falling due as follows: NER ARZERERBLENAT :
Group
rEH
2006 2005
—BERF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FTAT
Within one year —FR 467 -
(b) As lessee (b) HUEIMEAE G

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the properties
are negotiated for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2006, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—FNR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

EF_EZFIF (BREEMF) -

ANNUAL

AEEREREHERHHEESTHRAE
ME - RZEVEBIERR—F o

RIBERF=ZA=1—H  AEERET
AHEEERERN TIFHANZREK
REMSFIRERNT

Group

KEM
2006 2005
= L
HK$'000 HK$'000
312 570
312
312 882
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31 March 2006
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

32. BEHELTH (B)

(b) As lessee (Continued)

In addition, pursuant to various agreements entered into
between the Group and an unrelated party in Mainland
China, the Group is required to pay annual fee of
HK$118,000 in respect of the Land classified as prepaid
land lease payments of the Group in Mainland China,
with a carrying value of HK$26,416,000 at 31 March
2006, commencing from calendar year 2008 up to
calendar year 2048 with a 20% increment for every five
years (note 16).

33. COMMITMENTS

(b) UEBAF®D (&)

AN REBEASEEABE RNz — L EHE
AT EZZERZ  AEBERASET
RE R T (D EATEMN LB EKIE)
SINEE118,0008T  BELIHN =TT
F=ZA=+—BZKHEEAR26416000%
T MO —ZEENEFRE_ZTHNFIE
BREMRELN20% (KiE16) °

33. &L

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in

note

32, the Group had the following commitments at the

balance sheet date:

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AB R B
Machinery Hes

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no significant

commitment.
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BREEE32FF M 2 M EHAAES - REBREE
Az AEmT

Group

r&EHE
2006 2005
ZEERE “TTRHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER THET

- 558

St
s
i
I

QNN 3= W



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Rl i

31 March 2006

] © Bl 5

—FEAFZA=+-A

34. EHEALIRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere, the Group also had the following

related party transactions:

(a)

(b)

On 12 May 2005, Gadgets Yard entered into a loan
agreement with one of its director for a loan facility of
HK$10,000,000. During the year, Gadgets Yard has drawn
down HK$4,650,000 for its operation. In August 2005,
Gadgets Yard and its subsidiary, as further set out in note
11, were disposed of to an unrelated third party of the
Group.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered with the
Group on 20 December 2003, a minority shareholder of
Gadgets Yard advanced HK$5,880,000 to Gadgets Yard
as its initial working capital. The terms of the advance are
set out in note 23 to the financial statements. In August
2005, Gadgets Yard and its subsidiary, as further set out
in note 11, were disposed of to an unrelated third party
by the Group.

SREMBOAREEN  AKETRENTERHE
AERS :

@ R-ZEZTRFRA+=-B REF—ZFEX
B & 10,000,000 T HE — U EEZFT L — 1
ExthE e n%EE RECHHEZEMR
12814,650,0008 70 c R=ZZEZRFENR ' &
AEEMBRARARKASEHE TEBELE
=7 GRMKE N E— S

(b) BEAEER=_ZSTE=F+=-_A=+HFXL
ZBREHZE REZLBEREMREBR
5,880,000/ 8T ' IERUIFEEER - BRLZ
ERBERTBRENE23 - RZZEZTRHFN
A REREMNBARGEASELE TEHA
B E=H (BOM T E— S -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. EBEALRS (&)

|28 ANNUAL

(c) On 20 February 2004, the Group entered into a

shareholders’ agreement (the “Xin Procurement
Agreement”) with Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("HCSPL"), a company incorporated in Singapore with
limited liability, to form Xin Procurement in Singapore
with limited liability. HCSPL is wholly-owned by New
Century International Pte. Ltd. (“New Century"), a company
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. New
Century is in turn wholly-owned by the parents of Mr.
Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat, both of whom are
executive directors of the Company and also directors of
HCSPL. Pursuant to the Xin Procurement Agreement, the
Group and HCSPL owned 51% and 49% of equity
interests in Xin Procurement, respectively. On 20 February
2004, Xin Procurement entered into a supply agreement
(the “Supply Agreement”) with HCSPL whereby Xin
Procurement was appointed as a supplier of HCSPL for
the supply of certain office equipment and office supplies,
machinery, machinery parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage
for vessels. By virtue of the interests of the parents of Mr.
Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat in HCSPL, the formation
of Xin Procurement and the transactions contemplated
under the Supply Agreement constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. These connected transactions were approved by
the Company's shareholders on a special general meeting
held on 29 March 2004. Further details of the above
transactions are set out in the Company'’s circular dated
12 March 2004. During the current year, Xin Procurement
made sales to HCSPL amounting to HK$17,688,000
(2005: HK$32,973,000).

Sale of office equipment and office supplies were made
at the price equivalent to 10/9 times the cost incurred by
the Group. Sale of machinery, parts, stores for the
upkeeping of vessels, necessary victuals for the crew,
lubricating oil and bunkerage for the operation of the
vessels and appointment of surveyors and technical
consultants for the vessels were made at the price
equivalent to 100/98 times the cost incurred by the
Group.
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(0 R-ZEEME_A—-+H AEEE—H%E
N S MK L 2 B R A AlHuang & Co
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (THCSPL]) 3137 — A BR &R
7% ([Xin Procurementt3z%|) + AR —E
REFMEFEMAKSLZERLDA — Xin
Procurement ° HCSPLJ3 8 %7 il 3% sE i A 2 2
B BR A A New Century International Pte. Ltd.
(INew Century]) 2 & # & ° New Century8l
HERRTERFRALE (MU ABERRF
HITEERHCSPLES) 2 RE2EHHF - R
#&Xin Procurementif i + 2N & B &K HCSPLA A
# A Xin ProcurementZ 51% & 49% % 7N #&
wm o R_ZETWE_A-Z+ B  Xn
ProcurementfEHCSPLAT 37 — 17 44 8 19 5 ([ fit
FEH %) + #& L Xin ProcurementE B £ £
RHCSPLtEE THAERER B A E
o BFBmEA KIS BEEMH - ik
KRR ZHER - REESBBEXHMER
NAEHF EMHRAFE14AE - EREERLE
REBEEREEEE 2 X RHCSPLZ #% - KT
Xin Procurement R EH BB ET 2R F1HE
KARR L AERGUFRUEERS - tFE
BEXZER_ZETNF=A =+ NBET
CREFINASEARRREIE - B L
MRGZE—FHBHRARAR_ZEZTMN
FZA+TZHZBE - REFEAN ' Xin
Procurement[Al HCSPLZ 5 & 4 17,688,000/
TT(ZZZTRF ¢ 32,973,000 7T) °

BERAERERBRAETARZERBER
REBES ZKARZ10/915 o $HE iR FH
WMo BEHEEABR K  THEME  #
BREBREEMBEMENT 2ME R - #
AR ARAREBHTEISHM LI
MEREBRESRAEBMEE K AL
100/98f% °
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Rl i

31 March 2006
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4. BEHEALRS (&

(d)

(e)

®

®

(h)

Pursuant to the Xin Procurement Agreement, HCSPL
advanced HK$1,127,000 to Xin Procurement as the initial
working capital. The terms of the advance are set out in
note 23 to the financial statements.

During the year, HCSPL made advances of HK$27,850,000
(2005: HK$33,317,000) to Xin Procurement. At 31 March
2006, the outstanding balance owed by Xin Procurement
to HCSPL amounted to HK$25,704,000 (2005:
HK$12,643,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

As further set out in note 2.1(a) to the financial
statements, Huang Worldwide Holding Limited, the
immediate holding company of Vision Century, has
undertaken to the Company, to provide continuing financial
support to the Group so as to enable the Group to
continue its day-to-day operations as a viable going
concern notwithstanding any present or future financial
difficulties experienced by the Group up to 31 October
2007.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, HK$275,000 were
charged to the Group by HCSPL in respect of certain of
the office premises leased to the Group. The rental
expenses were determined between the Group and
HCSPL.

During the year, a management fee of HK$580,000
(2005: HK$370,000) was charged by HCSPL in respect
of certain administrative services rendered to the Group.
The management fee was determined between the Group
and HCSPL.

(d)

(e)

®

®

(h)

ANNUAL

8 ¥ Xin  Procurementt? &% * HCSPL® {5
1,127,0007 7T ¥ Xin Procurement{E /& #) £ &
BER o AR ZIGEHE NI RERMT FE23 o

RAFEA - HCSPLE 27,850,000/ 7T (=
T HF : 33,317,000 7t) F Xin
Procurement e R=ZETNF=ZA=+—H -
Xin  Procurement# K HCSPLZ & % &
25,704,000 — & A F : 12,643,000/8
TL)  ZERBENEER  2EREETEENK
H o

I EF IS $R KT 2.1(a) BT # + Vision Century.Z
B # £ IR A f Huang Worldwide Holding
LimitedB MAR A A® - EBE_TTLF
TA=+t—HILHE BESETAEEM
BX&E UEASEEESRERA R ZH
BRER  DAABHEAEEERPATL
425 48 ELOE o

REBEE-_ZTRF=-A=+—HBFERN -
HCSPLR B E FASKB 2 ETHAEWER
ANEBUEFR S 2750008 7T BBASHAX
AL EEHCSPLEE -

FR - HCSPLRERE TASE 2 & TERR
B ELE B & 580,000 T (—ETHE ¢
3700008 7T) r EHAEBEEHRASE N
HCSPLE E °
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. EHREALREZ (&)

0]

)

(K

0]

(m)
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During the year, HCSPL reimbursed HK$100,000 (2005:
HK$859,000) to the Group in respect of certain
administrative expenses paid by the Group on behalf of
HCSPL.

During the year, the Group reimbursed expenses of
HK$188,000 (2005:HK$795,000) to HCSPL in respect of
certain administrative expenses paid by HCSPL on behalf
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group
purchased from Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd. (“Huang
Procurement”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HCSPL,
certain office equipment and office supplies, machinery,
machinery parts, lubricants and bunkerage of
HK$15,219,000 at cost.

During the year, HCSPL paid HK$2,255,000 to certain of
the Group's suppliers on behalf of the Group in respect
of its purchases of office equipment and office supplies,
machinery, machinery parts, lubricants and bunkerage.

During the year, Huang Procurement paid HK$29,283,000
to certain of the Group's suppliers on behalf of the Group
in respect of its purchases of office equipment and office
suppliers, machinery, machinery parts, lubricants and
bunkerage (2005: Nil).
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(i) FA > HCSPLEIAEBRRHCSPLY 2 & F
THA XA AEREEE 1000008 (ZEF
FE 859,000/ 7T) °

() ER - KEBRHCSPLREAAEBR S M2 &
T 17 Bk B X2 M HCSPL{E & % I 188,000% 7T
(ZBEZRHE : 7950008 7T) o

REBEE_ZTAF=-A=t—HLEFER "
K& B mHCSPLZ & & Kf B A 7] Huang
Procurement Pte. Ltd., ([Huang Procurement])
RKABBE#E15219,0008 T2 & T i
NRERBRPAERMm - #eE BTG
o R R E o

(k)

() FA - HCSPLBE A S B EE B it A =% 5 i
NRERG - #F - BREH - R R
REAEEMASEE THEIIN
2,255,000/8 7T °

(m) EW * Huang Procurementgt A £ B #E B A
BERPFAERAMD KR EWTH
E&lﬁ%ﬂ CREAEERAEEE THER

% 1429,283,0008 T (ZEZHF : &) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

Rl #%5 ¥ @&« B BE

3/ March 2006 =BEXFZA=+—-H

35. MBEMEEERREE

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances and short term time deposits, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, loans from minority shareholders
and the immediate holding company, amount due to minority
shareholders and convertible note. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts payable,
which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates is minimal since the interest rate of all of the Group's
borrowings are fixed.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures in United States
dollars, Singapore dollars and Malaysia Ringgit. Such exposures
arise from the Group's procurement business. During the year
under review, the Group did not issue any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

ARBZETESRTABRREMRITAERLE
HEMER  FRRTREMER  PERER
BEEERARREZER - BN BIRRFKIER
THRBREE - WEEMIAZFEANDALE
BEERE AKEEEBEEMEREENE
B PImEEESERRENESZRR  MEE
BEREHEEETEL -

EOEFEAR  ARE-ERTITMEERTAER
BZHE -

AREERMTAELAZEZRAR AN EEAR - S
EREk  EERBERABECER EFSRH
TiHEEEZFRRZBR  RYPRMT -

PR

AR AEBABY BREREEMEGFTE - it
AEEAR zTENEX KB RARBMTRE -

SNE L By
AEEEHET  HNETEERATE LR S
EBER - ZFERBRREAREZREBERS - R©
EEFER - NREYERLSEOMETER
EWMIE-
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued) 3. BBABREEEERKEK (B)
Credit risk FEmRE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third AEBREARUMEBARZLZE=TXH - £ &
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to BrBRRGFEREEDNETEEZLMEEFS
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification RETEERERR o LI - BURRERTIIZ
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on BEAEEET  MASEBEZERRARITTERX -
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is MU EAHBREEM 2 ERAEZRHM
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in EARBREEGERETIERMIMEZER
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group TRHEER -
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.
The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which ArEEEMeREE (BRREE AT SEY)
comprise cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of the MEAZFEERRMNE  AEBZEERREY
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying FEAMESLE  &aRBEERZEIAEZKE
amount of the instrument. B -
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HRASERERAMEEBARZECE=ZARS
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. WHRRMEE RS, -
Liquidity risk REBESER
The Group's objective is to ensure adequate funds to meet AEEZEERERERHEGURNELS R
commitments associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows BEEBZAE AEERBEELETYEER
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. ERE o

36. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 36. LBREH
As further explained in notes 2.3 and 2.5 to the financial HANE SRR M 232 5B E— S HE - A
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs RERFERMAFTIREETEEVBREE
during the current year, the accounting treatment and Al MM BHREANETEERERZGHERER
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial ERHACEEN  UFAFRE - Bt - &F
statements have been revised to comply with the new EFERBLEEL  METHRSENCETH
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have BREY  UFEERAFEZERATAREE
been made and certain comparative amounts have been #
reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's
presentation and accounting treatment.

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. WAEMBRE

|32 ANNUAL

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 July 2006.
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